Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. Form 10-Q November 14, 2013

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2013

or

"TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from

Commission File Number: 1-35811

Health Insurance Innovations, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

46-1282634

to

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

15438 N. Florida Avenue, Suite 201

Tampa, FL33613(Address of Principal Executive Offices)(Zip Code)(877) 376-5831(Zip Code)

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

N/A

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes $x = No^{-1}$

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (\$232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See definition of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (Check one):

Large accelerated filer "

Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer " (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company x Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2). Yes " No x

As of November 7, 2013 the registrant had 5,265,321 shares of Class A common stock, \$0.001 par value, outstanding and 8,566,667 shares of Class B common stock, \$0.001 par value, outstanding.

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.

(Prior to February 13, 2013 Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC and Subsidiaries)

CONTENTS

PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION	3
ITEM 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)	3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012	3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2	<u>4012</u> 4
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012	5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders /Member s Equity for the Nine Months Ended September 30. the year ended December 31, 2012	<u>, 2013 a</u> nd 6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012	7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	8
ITEM 2 Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	22
ITEM 3 Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	37
ITEM 4 Controls and Procedures	37
PART II OTHER INFORMATION	39
ITEM 1 Legal Proceedings	39
ITEM 1A Risk Factors	39
ITEM 2 Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	40
ITEM 3 Defaults Upon Senior Securities	41
ITEM 4 Mine Safety Disclosures	41
ITEM 5 Other Information	41
ITEM 6 Exhibits	42
Signatures	43

PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.

(Prior to February 13, 2013 Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC and Subsidiaries)

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(\$ in thousands, except share amounts)

	-	ber 30, 2013	Decem	ber 31, 2012
Assets	(ι	inaudited)		
Current assets:				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	19,444	\$	750
Cash held on behalf of others		4,072		3,839
Short-term investments		21,414		
Accounts receivable		974		861
Advanced commissions		1,397		297
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		429		217
Total current assets		47,730		5,964
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation		383		213
Capitalized offering costs				1,819
Goodwill		18,014		5,906
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization		5,656		3,959
Other assets		30		100
Total assets	\$	71,813	\$	17,961
Liabilities and stockholders /member s equity				
Current liabilities:				
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$	1,537	\$	2,062
Carriers and vendors payable		2,877		2,790
Commissions payable		1,166		1,533
Current portion of long-term debt				813
Current portion of noncompete obligation		161		155
Deferred revenue		863		268
Contingent acquisition consideration		2,062		
Income taxes payable		74		
Due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC				773
Other current liabilities		13		77
Total current liabilities		8,753		8,471
Long-term debt, less current portion				2,481
Contingent acquisition consideration		2,874		
Noncompete obligation		504		626
Due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement		374		

Other liabilities		60	45
Total liabilities		12,565	11,623
Commitments and contingencies			
Stockholders /member s equity:			
Class A common stock (par value \$0.001 per share, 100,000,000			
shares authorized; 5,309,594 shares issued and 5,277,117			
outstanding)		5	
Class B common stock (par value \$0.001 per share, 20,000,000 share	res		
authorized; 8,566,667 shares issued and outstanding)		9	
Preferred stock (par value \$0.001 per share, 5,000,000 shares			
authorized; 0 shares issued and outstanding)			
Additional paid-in capital		26,837	
Treasury stock, at cost (32,477 shares)		(377)	
Accumulated deficit		(3,684)	
Member s equity of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC			6,335
Noncontrolling interests		36,458	3
Total stockholders /member s equity		59,248	6,338
Total liabilities and stockholders /member s equity	\$	71,813	\$ 17,961

See accompanying notes.

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.

(Prior to February 13, 2013 Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC and Subsidiaries)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(\$ in thousands, except per share data)

		Three mon Septemb	ber 30	,		Nine month Septembe	er 30,	
		2013		2012		2013	4	2012
	(ur	naudited)	(un	audited)	(un	audited)		
Revenues (premium equivalents of \$25,977 and \$20,792 for the three months ended								
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and								
\$72,256 and \$54,549 for the nine months ended								
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively)	\$	14,749	\$	11,644	\$	40,818	\$ 1	30,102
Third-party commissions		7,928		7,643		24,438		20,093
Credit cards and ACH fees		313		270		861		693
Contract termination expense						5,500		
Selling, general and administrative expenses		6,348		2,552		16,010		5,786
Depreciation and amortization		423		229		913		771
Total operating costs and expenses		15,012		10,694		47,722		27,343
(Loss) income from operations		(263)		950		(6,904)		2,759
Other expense (income):								
Interest (income) expense		(7)		67		14		194
Other expense (income)		53		(11)		437		(21)
Net (loss) income before income taxes		(309)		894		(7,355)		2,586
(Benefit) provision for income taxes		(823)				472		
Net income (loss)		514		894		(7,827)		2,586
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling)
interests		106		(43)		(4,143)		(63)
Net income (loss) attributable to Health								
Insurance Innovations, Inc. and Health Plan								
Intermediaries, LLC	\$	408	\$	937	\$	(3,684)	\$	2,649
Per share data								
Net income (loss) per share attributable to								
Health Insurance Innovations, Inc.								
Basic	\$	0.09			\$	(0.77)		
Diluted	\$	0.08			\$	(0.77)		
Weighted average Class A shares outstanding								
Basic	4	,795,736			4	,768,294		
Diluted		,861,336				,768,294		

See accompanying notes.

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.

(Prior to February 13, 2013 Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC and Subsidiaries)

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) (unaudited)

(\$ in thousands)

		nths ended iber 30,	Nine months ended September 30,		
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
Net income (loss)	\$ 514	\$ 894	\$ (7,827)	\$ 2,586	
Other comprehensive income:					
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities	30				
Comprehensive income (loss)	544	894	(7,827)	2,586	
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling					
interests	15				
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. and Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC.	\$ 529	\$ 894	\$ (7,827)	\$ 2,586	

See accompanying notes.

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.

(Prior to February 13, 2013 Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC and Subsidiaries)

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders /Member s Equity (unaudited)

(\$ in thousands, except share data)

Member s	iaries, C idiaries oncontrolling			Class B Co Stock	2	Additional Paid-in	Treasur		Accumulated	
Equity	Interests	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Capital	Shares	Amount	Deficit	Interests
\$ 6,996 3,349	\$ (89)		\$		\$	\$		\$	\$	\$
	92									
(4,010)	/_									
\$ 6,335	\$ 3		\$		\$	\$		\$	\$	\$
(248)	(11)				•	Ŧ		-	Ŧ	Ŧ
(171)	10									
(171)										
5,916	2									
(5,916)	(2)									5,918
										5,918
									(3,684)	(3,884
		4,666,667	5			57,750				
										13

			8,666,667	9	(36,453)				36,444
	100,000				1,302				
			(100,000)						(1,302
	542,927				4,276				
	512,921				1,270				
					(38)	20.477	(277)		(52
	(32,477)					32,477	(377)		6
									(672
\$ \$	5,277,117	\$5	8,566,667	\$9	\$ 26,837	32,477	(377)	\$ (3,684)	\$ 36,458

See accompanying notes.

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.

(Prior to February 13, 2013 Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC and Subsidiaries)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(\$ in thousands)

Net (loss) income\$(7,827)\$2,586Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:Stock-based compensation4,276Depreciation and amortization913771-Loss on extinguishment of debt71Amortization of deferred financing costs734-Changes in operating assets and liabilities:Increase in cash held on behalf of others(233)(541)Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202(520)Increase in davanced commissions(1,100)(276)Decrease in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207<		Nine Months Ended S 2013 (unaudited)	September 30, 2012
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:Stock-based compensation4,276Depreciation and amortization913771Loss on extinguishment of debt7171Amortization of deferred financing costs734Fair value adjustments to contingent acquisition consideration6464Changes in operating assets and liabilities:100(276)Increase in cash held on behalf of others(233)(541)Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202(520)Increase in advanced commissions(1,100)(276)Decrease in gateway processor deposit400400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement374106Increase in deferred revenue595196107Decrease in income taxes payable74202202Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:139125209Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors139125Payments fo	Operating activities:	• (- - - - - - - - - -	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
operating activities:4.276Stock-based compensation4.276Depreciation and amortization913771Loss on extinguishment of debt71Amortization of deferred financing costs734Fair value adjustments to contingent acquisition consideration64Changes in operating assets and liabilities:1Increase in cash held on behalf of others(233)(541)Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202(520)Increase in advanced commissions(1,100)(276)Decrease in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1.207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in de to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement3741Increase in deferred revenue5951961Increase in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)120Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3409)4,643Investing activities(3409)4,643139Investing activities(13)(118)118Loans to distributors139125125Payments of notes payable(9)125139Particus of short-term investing activities(31,480)(213)Proceeds from repayment of loans to d		\$ (7,827)	\$ 2,586
Stock-based compensation4,276Depreciation and amortization913771Loss on extinguishment of debt7171Amortization of deferred financing costs734Fair value adjustments to contingent acquisition consideration6471Changes in operating assets and liabilities:(233)(541)Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202(520)Increase in cash held on behalf of others(1,100)(276)Decrease in gateway processor deposit400400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement3741Increase in differed revenue5951961Increase in increase in accounts gativities(3,409)4,6431Investing activities:(21,414)111Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)125125125Parenes of property and equipment(113)(118)111Loss of stributors139125125125125125Payments of otes payable(31,480)(213)111Loss of distributors139125125139125Payments f			
Depreciation and amortization913771Loss on extinguishment of debt71Amortization of deferred financing costs734Fair value adjustments to contingent acquisition consideration64Changes in operating assets and liabilities:(233)(541)Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202(520)Increase in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(366)1,207(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement374106Increase in differed revenue595196196Increase in income taxes payable74126)126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(113)(118)118)Loass of stort-term investments, net(21,414)120120Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)125Loast of distributors139125125Payments of deposits(9)125125Payments of notes payable(54)(10)		1.076	
Loss on extinguishment of debt 71 Amortization of deferred financing costs 7 34 Fair value adjustments to contingent acquisition consideration 64 Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 1 Increase in cash held on behalf of others (233) (541) Decrease in cash held on behalf of others (223) (541) Decrease in acts held on behalf of others (21) (276) Decrease in actounts receivable 202 (520) Increase in advanced commissions (1,100) (276) Decrease in gateway processor deposit 400 (Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets (159) 5 Increase in carriers and vendors payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (386) 1,207 (Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (367) 185 Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement 374 16 Increase in income taxes payable 74 16 16 Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC (126) 14 16 Nesting activitities:	•		771
Amortization of deferred financing costs734Fair value adjustments to contingent acquisition consideration64Changes in operating assets and liabilities:Increase in cash held on behalf of others(233)Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202Increase in advanced commissions(1,100)(276)0Decrease in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)Increase in carriers and vendors payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)Increase in carriers and vendors payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(367)(Increase) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(367)Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement374Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)113)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors139125Payments of deposits(9)(9)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments of adepuist(9)(9)Purchases of notes payable(54)(10)			771
Fair value adjustments to contingent acquisition consideration64Changes in operating assets and liabilities:Increase in cash held on behalf of others(233)Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202Increase in advanced commissions(1,100)Charges in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)Increase in carriers and vendors payable877222(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(Jacrease) increase in commissions payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(Jacrease) increase in deto related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreementIncrease in deferred revenue595Increase in dide to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreementIncrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)Loans to distributors139Loans to distributors139Loans to distributors(31,480)Payments for deposits(9)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)Payments of notes payable(21,410)Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)(213)Payments of notes payable(21,410)Payments of notes payable(31,480)(21,410)			
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:Increase in cash held on behalf of others(233)(541)Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202(520)Increase in advanced commissions(1,100)(276)Decrease in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement3741Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement3741Increase in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)113)(118)Loans to distributors139125Payments of property and equipment(174)(220)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)125Payments for deposits(9)125Payments of notes payable(21,31,480)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(54)(10)		,	34
Increase in cash held on behalf of others(233)(541)Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202(520)Increase in advanced commissions(1,100)(276)Decrease in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement374100Increase in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(113)(118)118)Loans to distributors(139)125125Payments of property and equipment(113)(118)126Loans to distributors(139)125125Payments of deposits(9)(213)125Payments of notes payable(54)(10)		64	
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable202(520)Increase in advanced commissions(1,100)(276)Decrease in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement3741Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)118)Loans to distributors(139)125Payments for deposits(9)139125Payments for deposits(9)139125Repayments of notes payable(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)			
Increase in advanced commissions(1,100)(276)Decrease in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement3741Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)118)Loans to distributors(174)(220)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)9Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(54)(10)		. ,	. ,
Decrease in gateway processor deposit400(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement3741Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in income taxes payable741Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)125Payments for deposits(9)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(54)(10)			. ,
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets(159)5Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement374185Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in income taxes payable74126)Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)118)Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)125Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)125Payments for deposits(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)		(1,100)	
Increase in carriers and vendors payable87722(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement374100Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in income taxes payable74100Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)118)Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)125Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)125Payments for deposits(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(54)(10)	Decrease in gateway processor deposit		400
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities(386)1,207(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement374Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in income taxes payable74126)Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)4,643Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)125Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)125Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(54)(10)			
(Decrease) increase in commissions payable(367)185Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement374Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in income taxes payable74Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)	Increase in carriers and vendors payable	87	722
Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement374Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in income taxes payable74Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(10)(10)	(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities	(386)	1,207
Increase in deferred revenue595196Increase in income taxes payable74Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors(174)(220)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)	(Decrease) increase in commissions payable	(367)	185
Increase in income taxes payable74Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors(174)(220)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)	Increase in due to related parties pursuant to tax receivable agreement	374	
Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC(126)Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:(21,414)Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors(174)(220)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(54)(10)	Increase in deferred revenue	595	196
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities(3,409)4,643Investing activities:Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)Loans to distributors(174)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139Payments for deposits(9)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)Financing activities:(54)Repayments of notes payable(54)	Increase in income taxes payable	74	
Investing activities:(21,414)Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)Loans to distributors(113)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139Payments for deposits(9)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)Financing activities:(54)Repayments of notes payable(54)	Decrease in amounts due to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC		(126)
Acquisitions of short-term investments, net(21,414)Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)Loans to distributors(174)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139Payments for deposits(9)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)Financing activities:(54)Repayments of notes payable(54)	Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities	(3,409)	4,643
Business acquisition, net of cash acquired(9,909)Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors(174)(220)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(31,480)(213)Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)	Investing activities:		
Purchases of property and equipment(113)(118)Loans to distributors(174)(220)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)(113)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(54)(10)	Acquisitions of short-term investments, net	(21,414)	
Loans to distributors(174)(220)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(54)(10)	Business acquisition, net of cash acquired	(9,909)	
Loans to distributors(174)(220)Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(54)(10)		(113)	(118)
Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors139125Payments for deposits(9)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)(213)Financing activities:200Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)		(174)	(220)
Payments for deposits(9)Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)(213)Financing activities:(10)	Proceeds from repayment of loans to distributors		
Net cash used in investing activities(31,480)(213)Financing activities:77Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)		(9)	
Financing activities:Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)			(213)
Repayments of notes payable(54)(10)			× /
	÷	(54)	(10)
	Repayments of long-term debt	(3,294)	(573)

Payments under noncompete obligation	(116)	
Proceeds from note payable	, , ,	100
Distributions to member of Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC	(1,617)	(2,763)
Payments for equity issuance	(1,643)	(862)
Purchase of treasury stock	(377)	
Payments under capital leases	(2)	(8)
Issuance of Class A common stock in initial public offering, net of underwriters		
discount	60,760	
Issuance of Class A common stock in underwriters exercise of over-allotment		
option	1,302	
Purchase of Series B Membership interests	(1,302)	
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary	(90)	
Contributions from noncontrolling interests	16	50
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	53,583	(4,066)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	18,694	364
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	750	618
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period \$	19,444	\$ 982
Supplemental Disclosure of non-cash investing activities:		
Contingent consideration for business acquisition \$	4,937	\$
Software acquired through issuance of trade payable		45
Purchase of insurance through premium financing agreement		21
Noncompete agreement acquired through issuance of long-term payable		843

See accompanying notes.

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.

(Prior to February 13, 2013 Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC and Subsidiaries)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

In this quarterly report, unless the context suggests otherwise, references in this report to the Company, we, us and o refer (1) prior to the February 13, 2013 initial public offering (IPO) of the Class A common stock of Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. and related transactions, to Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC (HPI) and its consolidated subsidiaries and (2) after our IPO and related transactions, to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. The terms HII, HPIH and ICE refer to the stand-alone entities Health Insurance Innovations, Inc., Health Plan Intermediaries Holdings, LLC, and Insurance Center for Excellence, LLC, respectively. HPIH and ICE are consolidated subsidiaries of HII. The term Secured refers to (a) prior to or at the time of their July 17, 2013 acquisition by us, Sunrise Health Plans, Inc., Sunrise Group Marketing, Inc. and Secured Software Solutions, Inc., collectively, and (b) following our July 17, 2013 acquisition, the entities described in (a) and the limited liability companies into which such entities were converted shortly following such acquisition.

Business Description and Organizational Structure of the Company

Our Business

We are a developer and administrator of affordable individual health insurance plans and supplemental services that are sold throughout the United States. Our main product, short-term medical (STM) insurance, is an alternative to traditional individual major medical plans and generally offers comparable benefits for qualifying individuals. We also offer guaranteed-issue hospital indemnity plans for individuals under the age of 65 and a variety of ancillary products that are frequently purchased together with the STM and hospital indemnity plans as supplements. We design and structure insurance products on behalf of our contracted insurance carrier companies, market them to individuals through a network of distributors, including Secured, a significant distributor which we acquired on July 17, 2013, as described in Note 2 below, and manage our relationships with our customers whom are referred to as members, through our customer service agents. Our sales are primarily executed online and offer real-time fulfillment through our proprietary web-based technology platform, through which we receive credit card and automated clearing house (ACH) payments directly from the members at the time of sale. In certain cases, premiums are collected by the distributor and remitted to us. The plans are underwritten by contracted insurance carrier companies, and we assume no underwriting or insurance risk.

Our History

Our business began operations in 2008, and historically we operated through HPI. In August 2008, Naylor Group Partners, LLC (Naylor) made a capital contribution to HPI in exchange for a 50% ownership interest in HPI. In September 2011, HPI purchased all of the units owned by Naylor for \$5.3 million plus financing costs of \$135,000. HPI financed a portion of the purchase price by entering into a loan agreement with a bank for \$4.3 million. The remaining purchase price was funded with HPI cash and a contribution from Michael Kosloske (Mr. Kosloske), our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer. Following the purchase, Mr. Kosloske became the sole member of

HPI.

Our Reorganization and the IPO

HII was incorporated in the State of Delaware on October 26, 2012 to facilitate the IPO and to become a holding company owning as its principal asset membership interests in HPIH. Since November 2012, we have operated our business through HPIH and its consolidated subsidiaries. See Note 6 for more information about the IPO.

In anticipation of the IPO, on November 7, 2012, HPI assigned the operating assets of our business through a series of transactions to HPIH, and HPIH assumed the operating liabilities of HPI.

Our Organizational Structure after the IPO

HII has two classes of outstanding capital stock: Class A common stock and Class B common stock. Class A shares represent 100% of the economic rights of the holders of all classes of our common stock to share in our distributions. Class B shares do not entitle their holders to any dividends paid by, or rights upon liquidation of, HII. Shares of our Class A common stock vote together with shares of our Class B common stock as a single class, except as otherwise required by law. Each share of our Class A common stock and our Class B common stock entitles its holder to one vote. As of September 30, 2013, Mr. Kosloske beneficially owns 61.9% of our outstanding Class A common stock and Class B common stock on a combined basis, which equals his combined economic interest in the Company, and has effective control over the outcome of votes on all matters requiring approval by our stockholders.

HPIH has two series of outstanding equity: Series A Membership Interests, which may only be issued to HII, as sole managing member, and Series B Membership Interests. The Series B Membership Interests are held by HPI and Health Plan Intermediaries Sub, LLC (HPIS), a subsidiary of HPI, and these entities are beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske. As of September 30, 2013, (i) the Series A Membership Interests held by HII represent 38.1% of the outstanding membership interests, 38.1% of the economic interests and 100% of the voting interests in HPIH and (ii) the Series B Membership Interests held by the entities beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske represent 61.9% of the conomic interests and no voting interest in HPIH.

For greater detail regarding our organizational structure, our capitalization, the exchange agreement referenced below and related matters, see Item 1. Business Our History and the Reorganization of Our Corporate Structure set forth in our annual report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 1, 2013.

Exchange Agreement

On February 13, 2013, we entered into an exchange agreement (the Exchange Agreement) with the holders of Series B Membership Interests. Pursuant to and subject to the terms of the Exchange Agreement and the amended and restated limited liability company agreement of HPIH, holders of Series B Membership Interests, at any time and from time to time, may exchange one or more Series B Membership Interests, together with an equal number of shares of our Class B common stock, for shares of our Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis, subject to equitable adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends and reclassifications. In connection with each exchange, HPIH will cancel the delivered Series B Membership Interests and Class B common stock and issue to us Series A Membership Interests on a one-for-one basis. Thus, as holders exchange their Series B Membership Interests for Class A common stock, our interest in HPIH will increase.

Holders will not have the right to exchange Series B Membership Interests if we determine that such exchange would be prohibited by law or regulation or would violate other agreements to which we may be subject. We may impose additional restrictions on the exchange that we determine necessary or advisable so that HPIH is not treated as a publicly traded partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If the Internal Revenue Service were to contend successfully that HPIH should be treated as a publicly traded partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, HPIH would be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes and thus would be subject to entity-level tax on its taxable income.

We and the exchanging holder will each generally bear our own expenses in connection with an exchange, except that, subject to a limited exception, we are required to pay any transfer taxes, stamp taxes or duties or other similar taxes in connection with such an exchange.

Tax Receivable Agreement

The purchase of Series B Membership Interests (together with an equal number of shares of our Class B common stock) with the net proceeds from the sale of shares reserved to cover over-allotments from the IPO, as well as subsequent exchanges of Series B Membership Interests (together with an equal number of shares of our Class B common stock, for shares of our Class A common stock) are expected to increase our tax basis in our share of HPIH s tangible and intangible assets. These increases in tax basis are expected to increase our depreciation and amortization income tax deductions and create other tax benefits and therefore may reduce the amount of income tax that we would otherwise be required to pay in the future.

On February 13, 2013, we entered into a tax receivable agreement with the holders of Series B Membership Interests (currently HPI and HPIS, which are beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske). The agreement requires us to pay to such holders 85% of the cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax we realize (or are deemed to realize

in the case of an early termination payment, a change in control or a material breach by us of our obligations under the tax receivable agreement) as a result of any possible future increases in tax basis described above and of certain other tax benefits related to entering into the tax receivable agreement, including tax benefits attributable to payments under the tax receivable agreement itself. This is HII s obligation and not an obligation of HPIH. HII will benefit from the remaining 15% of any realized cash savings. For purposes of the tax receivable agreement, cash savings in income tax is computed by comparing our actual income tax liability with our hypothetical liability had we not been able to utilize the tax benefits subject to the tax receivable agreement itself. The tax receivable agreement became effective upon completion of the IPO and will remain in effect until all such tax benefits have been used or expired, unless HII exercises its right to terminate the tax receivable agreement for an amount based on the agreed payments remaining to be made under the agreement or HII breaches any of its material obligations under the tax receivable agreement in which case all obligations will generally be accelerated and due as if HII had exercised its right to terminate the agreement. Any potential future payments will be calculated using the market value of our Class A common stock at the time of the relevant exchange and prevailing tax rates in future years and will be dependent on us generating sufficient future taxable income to realize the benefit. Payments are generally due under the tax receivable agreement within a specified period of time following the filing of our tax return for the taxable year with respect to which payment of the obligation arises. For further information on the tax receivable agreement, see Note 14.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements reflect the results of operations of HPI through the closing of the IPO on February 13, 2013, and HII subsequent to the IPO. Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Our accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and do not include all of the information and notes required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments and accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation of consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows have been included. The consolidated balance sheet data for the year ended December 31, 2012 was derived from our audited financial statements, but does not include all the disclosures required by GAAP. For further information, refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, including the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.

Noncontrolling interests are included in the consolidated balance sheets as a component of stockholders equity that is not attributable to the equity of HII. We report separately the amounts of consolidated net income or loss attributable to us and noncontrolling interests.

As an emerging growth company as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the JOBS Act), we intend to take advantage of certain temporary exemptions from various reporting requirements, including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements. We have also elected to delay the adoption of new and revised accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to nonpublic entities. Our financial statements may therefore not be comparable to those of companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards. These exemptions will apply for a period of five years following the completion of our IPO although if the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds \$700 million as of any June 30 before that time, we would cease to be an emerging growth company as of the following December 31.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior year s consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. These estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant Accounting Policies

Except as discussed below, our accounting policies are described in Note 1, Organization, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in each of our audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 on Form 10-K and our consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 on Form 10-Q.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In the following summary of recent accounting pronouncements, all references to effective dates of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidance relate to nonpublic entities. As noted above, we have elected to delay the adoption of new and revised accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to nonpublic companies under provisions of the JOBS Act.

In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance which states that an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, should be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. To the extent a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. To the extent a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward is not available as of the reporting date under the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction to settle any additional income taxes that would result from the disallowance of a tax position or the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction does not require the entity to use, and the entity does not intend to use, the deferred tax asset for such purpose, the unrecognized tax benefit should be presented in the financial statements as a liability and should not be combined with deferred tax assets. The assessment of whether a deferred tax asset is available is based on the unrecognized tax benefit and deferred tax asset that exist at the reporting date and should be made presuming disallowance of the tax position at the reporting date. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2014, with early adoption permitted. We plan to adopt this guidance during the quarter ended March 31, 2015 and are assessing the potential impact to our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued guidance that expanded disclosures for items reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The standard requires presentation of information about reclassification adjustments from accumulated other comprehensive income in a single note to or on the face of the financial statements. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. We plan to adopt the guidance during the quarter ended March 31, 2014, and do not expect it to have a significant impact our consolidated financial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued amended guidance relating to goodwill and other intangible assets which permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with GAAP. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of more than 50%. If, after assessing the totality of events and circumstances, an entity concludes that it is not more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired, then no further action is required. This guidance was adopted effective as of January 1, 2013. Since this guidance only changes the manner in which we assess indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment, adoption is expected not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued guidance which requires disclosures of both gross and net information about instruments and transactions eligible for offset as well as transactions subject to an agreement similar to a master netting agreement. This guidance was adopted effective January 1, 2013. As this guidance is limited to presentation only, adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

2. Business Acquisitions

Acquisition of Sunrise Health Plans, Inc. and Affiliates

On July 17, 2013, we consummated a Stock Purchase Agreement (the Purchase Agreement) with Joseph Safina, Howard Knaster and Jorge Saavedra (collectively, the Sellers), pursuant to which we acquired from the Sellers all of the outstanding equity of each in Sunrise Health Plans, Inc., a licensed insurance broker, Sunrise Group Marketing, Inc., a call center and sales lead management company, and Secured Software Solutions, Inc., an intellectual property holding company, each of which was converted to a limited liability company shortly after closing, for a cash payment of \$10.0 million plus \$6.7 million of contingent consideration described below. The funding of the \$10.0 million cash portion of the purchase price was provided primarily from net proceeds from the IPO.

The Sellers may receive contingent cash consideration under an adjustable promissory note issued by us with an initial face amount of \$2.75 million, due on June 30, 2015 bearing an interest rate of 5%. Based upon the level of commission revenue attained by the acquired business operations between July 1, 2013 and June 30, 2015, the principal amount may be decreased if such commission revenue does not increase to a minimum threshold that the parties established (the threshold) based upon actual commission revenues during the calendar year ended December 31, 2012. Alternatively, in the event growth in commission revenue increases above the threshold, the note s principal amount may be increased to allow the Sellers to share a portion of the commission growth above the threshold. We and each of the Sellers entered into agreements providing for equity earn-out consideration whereby the Sellers have contingent rights to receive up to \$3.75 million based on the achievement of certain performance and financial targets over the three years following the closing. To the extent that such targets are achieved, such earn-out consideration will be paid in our Class A common stock. The stock price used to determine the number of shares to be issued in connection with such earn-out consideration will be determined at the end of the respective performance periods as set forth in each of the forms of Performance Based Stock Award (A) Agreement and Performance Based Stock Award (B) Agreement, copies of which are incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2013. The estimated range of potential total contingent consideration is approximately \$150,000 to \$9.0 million. In connection with the Purchase Agreement, on July 17, 2013, we also entered into employment agreements with the Sellers.

This transaction is expected to provide us with additional benefits such as reduced enterprise risk from enhanced oversight of our distribution, addition of sales lead management expertise to maximize the number of new insurance policies produced by each dollar invested in sales leads, and opportunities through technological and cost-saving synergies.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration for the acquisition as of July 17, 2013 (\$ in thousands). The fair values are derived using discount rates related to the probability of the Sellers meeting the thresholds for payment and other risk factors including credit risk.

Cash paid at closing	\$ 10,000
Contingent consideration:	
Note payable	1,671
Contingent equity consideration	3,051
Other contingent consideration	150
Total consideration	\$ 14,872

The fair value of the note payable and equity contingent consideration is \$1.7 million and \$3.1 million, as of September 30, 2013 respectively, and is included in contingent acquisition consideration on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

The following table summarizes the allocation of the total purchase prices for the acquisition as of July 17, 2013 (\$ in thousands):

Cash	9	5 91
Accounts receiva	ble and other assets (1)	332
Property and equ	ipment (1)	128
Accounts payable	e and accrued expenses	(326)
Intangible asset	brand	76
Intangible asset	noncompete agreements	99
Intangible asset	customer relationships-distributors	1,050
Intangible asset	customer relationships-direct	788
Intangible asset	capitalized software	526
Goodwill (2)		12,108
	9	5 14,872

(1)The carrying value of accounts receivable and property and equipment acquired approximated fair value; as such, no adjustments to these accounts were recorded in association with the acquisition.

(2)As of September 30, 2013, the amount of goodwill acquired that we expect to be deductible for income tax purposes is \$5.6 million.

The goodwill allocated to the purchase price was calculated as the fair value of the consideration less the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. This value is primarily related to expected results of future operations of Secured and the operational and technological synergies we expect to realize as a result of the acquisition.

Related to the acquisition of Secured, during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, we recognized \$107,000 and \$301,000 in transaction costs, respectively. Transaction costs were expensed as incurred and are included in Selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

As a result of acquiring Secured, our consolidated results of operations include the results of Secured since the acquisition date. Secured s revenues and pre-tax net loss included in our results of operations since the acquisition were \$1.3 million and \$205,000, respectively, for each of the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013. Net loss before taxes included \$166,000 of amortization expense related to the identified intangible assets recorded as a result of the acquisition.

The following table presents unaudited pro forma information for the Company assuming the acquisition of Secured had occurred as of January 1, 2012. This pro forma information does not purport to represent what our actual results would have been if the acquisition had occurred as of the date indicated or what such results would be for any future periods.

	(\$ in thousands, except per share data)								
	Three mor	ths ended							
	Septem	ber 30,	September 30,						
	2013	2012	2013	2012					
Revenues	\$ 15,162	\$ 12,045	\$ 43,383	\$ 31,997					
Net (loss) income before income taxes	(209)	1,170	(5,491)	4,045					
Net (loss) income	(226)	1,170	(5,885)	4,045					
Net (loss) income attributable to Health Insurance Innovations,									
Inc. and Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC	(93)	1,213	(1,219)	4,108					
Loss per share basic	(0.02)		(0.26)						
Loss per share diluted	(0.02)		(0.26)						
Acquisition of Insurance Center for Excellence, LLC and Other Transactions									

Acquisition of Insurance Center for Excellence, LLC and Other Transactions

On June 1, 2012, HPI and TSG Agency, LLC (TSG) acquired ICE. ICE is a call center training facility for the Company s distributors. In connection with the transaction, HPI received an 80% controlling interest in ICE and was required to contribute \$80,000 in capital contributions, and TSG received a 20% noncontrolling interest in the business and was required to contribute \$20,000 in capital contributions. Subsequent to the initial contributions, HPI contributed an additional \$240,000, and TSG contributed an additional \$60,000, respectively, to ICE during the year ended December 31, 2012. During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we contributed \$40,000 to ICE, and TSG contributed \$16,000 to ICE. On June 30, 2013, we purchased TSG s 20% interest in ICE for \$90,000 and, as a result, ICE is our wholly-owned subsidiary.

ICE entered into employment agreements with employees of The Amacore Group, Inc. (Amacore) contemporaneously with the June 1, 2012 formation of ICE, and at the date of formation, former Amacore employees comprised the full staff of ICE. ICE additionally assumed a month-to-month lease for space that was occupied by Amacore immediately prior to the formation of ICE.

Concurrent with the formation of ICE, ICE additionally entered into a sublease agreement (Lease Agreement) with Amacore for additional space effective June 1, 2012. Under the Lease Agreement, ICE assumed all rights, responsibilities, obligations, terms and conditions of the original lease, which expires on April 30, 2015. Amacore agreed to transfer to ICE a security deposit previously paid by Amacore of approximately \$13,000, and Amacore contributed \$15,000 to ICE for the purchase of property and equipment, certain office and computer equipment and rights to certain 800 numbers, to ICE that have minimal value. We are recognizing the consideration provided by Amacore as a lease incentive that is being amortized over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Additionally, concurrent with its June 1, 2012 formation, ICE entered into an Agent Producer Agreement and an Assignment of Commissions Agreement with Amacore (collectively referred to as Agent Agreement). Under the Agent Agreement, ICE assigned its commissions with respect to Assurant dental sales to Amacore in return for production incentives, training, marketing materials, commission payments and reporting, advances on commissions and ongoing sales support.

The transaction with Amacore as described above is a business combination, and no assets or liabilities, including intangible assets or goodwill, were recognized other than those described above.

In March 2013, we paid \$5.5 million to terminate certain contract rights with TSG. As a result of this transaction, Ivan Spinner, who controls TSG, became an employee of the Company. This transaction was expensed during the nine months ended September 30, 2013, and is included within contract termination expense on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Our goodwill balance as of January 1, 2012 arose from the acquisition of the Naylor units of HPI as described in Note 1. Our goodwill balance as of September 30, 2013 arose from the Secured acquisition described in Note 2 as well as our goodwill balance existing prior to such acquisition.

The changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill were as follows (\$ in thousands):

Balance as of January 1, 2012	\$ 5,906	
Goodwill acquired		
Impairment of goodwill		
Balance as of December 31, 2012	\$ 5,906	
Goodwill acquired	12,108	
Impairment of goodwill		
Balance as of September 30, 2013	\$ 18,014	

Other intangible assets

Our other intangible assets arose primarily from the acquisitions described above and consist of a brand, the carrier network, distributor relationships, customer relationships, noncompete agreements and capitalized software. Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives from two to fifteen years.

Major classes of intangible assets as of September 30, 2013 consisted of the following (\$ in thousands):

	Weighted-average Amortization	ss Carrying Amount	 umulated	angible set, net
Brand	2.0	\$ 476	\$ (408)	\$ 68
Carrier network	5.0	40	(16)	24
Distributor relationships	8.8	4,660	(1,046)	3,614
Noncompete agreements	4.8	942	(204)	738
Customer relationships	2.0	788	(82)	706
Capitalized software	2.2	571	(65)	506
Total intangible assets	6.6	\$ 7,477	\$ (1,821)	\$ 5,656

Major classes of intangible assets as of December 31, 2012 consisted of the following:

	Weighted-average Amortization	s Carrying mount	mulated rtization	ngible et, net
Brand	2.0	\$ 400	\$ (250)	\$ 150
Capitalized software	5.0	45	(4)	41
Carrier network	5.0	40	(10)	30
Distributor relationships	7.0	3,610	(645)	2,965
Noncompete agreement	5.0	843	(70)	773

Total intangible assets6.2\$4,938\$(979)\$3,959Amortization expense for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was \$391,000 and \$217,000,respectively, and \$842,000 and \$735,000, for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Estimated annual pretax amortization for intangibles assets for 2013 and in each of the next five years are as follows (\$ in thousands):

Remainder of 2013	\$ 375
2014	1,499
2015	1,181
2016	787
2017	689
2018	457

4. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents advanced payments received for commissions on the sales of our products. Revenues related to these advanced payments are earned ratably over the active term of each policy. All deferred revenue amounts are realizable within one year and are included in current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Deferred revenue balance at September 30, 2013 and at December 31, 2012 was \$863,000 and \$268,000, respectively.

5. Debt

During September 2011, HPI entered into a bank loan agreement with a principal balance of \$4.3 million. The purpose of this loan was to finance a portion of the acquisition of the remaining 50% interest in HPI as discussed in Note 1. At the inception of the loan, borrowings under the facility were secured by all of HPI s assets, including, but not limited to, cash accounts, accounts receivable, and property and equipment. The loan was further secured with a personal unlimited guarantee by Mr. Kosloske and certain real properties owned by Mr. Kosloske. The loan was a self-amortizing five-year loan bearing fixed interest at 5.25% with equal monthly payments of \$81,000, which included principal and interest.

There was no interest expense incurred on the loan for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and \$17,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. Interest expense incurred on the loan was \$48,000 and \$151,000 during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively.

In connection with the loan, we recorded deferred financing costs which consisted primarily of consulting and legal fees directly related to the loan. These amounts were amortized over the term of the loan using the effective interest rate method. There was no amortization expense on the deferred financing costs for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and \$7,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. Amortization expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 was \$11,000 and \$34,000, respectively.

In February 2013, we repaid the \$3.2 million outstanding balance of the loan using a portion of the proceeds of the IPO. The remaining deferred financing costs of \$71,000 were written-off to other expense (income) on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations when the loan was repaid.

6. Stockholders Equity

Refer to Note 1 for further information regarding the current capital structure of the Company.

On February 13, 2013, we completed our IPO by issuing 4,666,667 shares of our Class A common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, at a price to the public of \$14.00 per share of common stock. In addition, we issued 8,666,667 shares of our Class B common stock, of which 8,580,000 shares of Class B common stock were obtained by HPI and 86,667 shares of Class B common stock were obtained by HPIS, of which HPI is the managing member. In addition, we granted the underwriters of the IPO the right to purchase additional shares of Class A common stock to cover over-allotments (the over-allotment option).

Holders of each of Class A common stock and Class B common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted upon by the shareholders, and holders of each class will vote together as a single class on all such matters.

Holders of shares of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single class on all matters presented to our stockholders for their vote or approval, except as otherwise required by applicable law. As of September 30, 2013, Class A common stockholders have 38.1% of the voting power in HII and Class B common stockholders have 61.9% of the voting power of HII. Holders of shares of our Class A common stock have 100% of the economic interest in HII. Holders of Class B common stock do not have an economic interest in HII.

In accordance with the Exchange Agreement, in March 2013, we received \$1.3 million in proceeds from the issuance of 100,000 shares of Class A common stock through the over-allotment option. We immediately used the proceeds to acquire Series B Membership Interests, together with an equal number of shares of our Class B common stock, from HPI. These Series B Membership Interests were immediately recapitalized into Series A Membership Interests in HPIH.

Upon completion of the IPO, HII became a holding company, the principal asset of which is our interest in HPIH. All of our business is conducted through HPIH. We are the sole managing member of HPIH and have 100% of its voting rights and control.

Our authorized capital stock consists of 100,000,000 shares of Class A common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, 20,000,000 shares of Class B common stock, par value \$0.001 per share and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.001 per share.

Class A Common Stock

The determination to pay dividends, if any, to our Class A common stockholders will be made by our board of directors. We do not, however, expect to declare or pay any cash or other dividends in the foreseeable future on our Class A common stock, as we intend to reinvest any cash flow generated by operations in our business. We may enter into credit agreements or other borrowing arrangements in the future that prohibit or restrict our ability to declare or pay dividends on our Class A common stock. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of HII, the holders of Class A common stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities, subject to prior distribution rights of preferred stock, if any, then outstanding. The holders of our Class A common stock have no preemptive or conversion rights or other subscription rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the Class A common stock. The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of our common stock will be subject to those of the holders of any shares of our preferred stock we may issue in the future.

Class B Common Stock

Class B common stockholders will not be entitled to any dividend payments. In the event of any dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of our affairs, whether voluntary or involuntary, after payment of our debts and other liabilities and making provision for any holders of our preferred stock that have a liquidation preference, our Class B common stockholders will not be entitled to receive any of our assets. In the event of our merger or consolidation with or into another company in connection with which shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock (together with the related membership interests) are converted into, or become exchangeable for, shares of stock, other securities or property (including cash), each Class B common stockholder will be entitled to receive the same number of shares of stock as is received by Class A stockholders for each share of Class A stock, and will not be entitled, for each share of Class B stock, to receive other securities or property (including cash). No holders of Class B common stock will have preemptive rights to purchase additional shares of Class B common stock.

Preferred Stock

Our board of directors has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions thereof, including dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, redemption prices, liquidation preferences and the number of shares constituting any series or the designation of such series, without further vote or action by the stockholders.

The issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of HII without further action by the stockholders and may adversely affect the voting and other rights of the holders of Class A common stock. At present, we have no plans to issue any preferred stock.

Treasury Stock

As of September 30, 2013, we had 32,477 shares of treasury stock, carried at a cost of \$377,000. These shares were repurchased pursuant to the surrender of shares by certain employees to satisfy statutory tax withholding obligations on vested restricted stock awards.

7. Variable Interest Entities

As of September 30, 2013, we had a variable interest in HPIH, and HPIH is a variable interest entity (VIE), pursuant to FASB guidance. HPIH is a VIE as the voting rights of the investors are not proportional to their obligations to

absorb the expected losses of HPIH. We hold 100% of the voting power in HPIH, but own less than 50% of the total membership interest, and the other members of HPIH hold no voting rights in HPIH, but own more than 50% of the membership interest. Further, substantially all of the activities of HPIH are conducted on behalf of a membership with disproportionately few voting rights.

We have concluded that we are the primary beneficiary of HPIH, and, therefore, should consolidate HPIH since we have both power and benefits over HPIH. We have the power to direct the activities of HPIH that most significantly impact the entity s economic performance. Pursuant to the Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Health Plan Intermediaries Holdings, LLC, we are the sole managing member of HPIH, operate the business, have 100% of the voting power and control the management of HPIH. Our minority equity interest in HPIH obligates us to absorb losses of HPIH and gives us the right to receive benefits from HPIH related to the day-to-day operations of the entity, both of which could potentially be significant to HPIH. As such, our maximum exposure to loss as a result of our involvement in this VIE is 100% of the operating income or loss of the VIE.

8. Stock-based Compensation

We maintain one stock-based incentive plan, the Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan (the LTIP), which became effective February 7, 2013, under which stock options, stock appreciation rights (SARs), restricted shares and other types of equity and cash incentive awards may be granted to employees, non-employee directors and service providers. The LTIP expires after ten years, unless prior to that date the maximum number of shares available for issuance under the plan has been issued or our board of directors terminates this plan. There are 1,250,000 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the LTIP.

Expense for stock-based compensation is recognized based upon estimated grant date fair value and is amortized over the service period of the awards using the accelerated method. For grants of options or SARs, we apply the Black-Scholes option-pricing model in determining the fair value of share-based payments to employees. The resulting compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period. The requisite service period is the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for an award, which often is the vesting period. Compensation expense is recognized only for those awards expected to vest, with forfeitures estimated based on our historical experience and future expectations. All stock-based compensation expense is classified within Selling, general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations. None of the stock-based compensation was capitalized during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013.

The fair value of SARs granted during the first nine months of 2013 was based upon the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The expected term of the awards represents the estimated period of time until exercise, giving consideration to the contractual terms, vesting schedules and expectations of future employee behavior. For 2013, the expected stock price volatility was determined using a peer group of public companies within our industry as it is not practicable for the Company to estimate its own volatility due to the lack of a liquid market and active market trades. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant with an equivalent remaining term. The Company has not paid dividends in the past and does not currently plan to pay any dividends in the foreseeable future.

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was used with the following weighted average assumptions:

Risk-free rate	1.0%
Expected life	4.5 years
Volatility	46.0%
Expected dividend	none

The following table summarizes SARs and restricted shares granted during the three and nine months ended September 30 (in thousands):

Three months ended September 30,		Nine months ended September 30,		
2013	2012	2013	2012	

	Restricted		Restricted		Restricted		Restricted
SARs	Shares	SARs	Shares	SARs	Shares	SARs	Shares
Issued	Issued	Issued	Issued	Issued	Issued	Issued	Issued
20				170	543		

The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands):

	Three Mont	hs Ended	Nine Months Ended			
	Septemb	er 30,	Septemb	er 30,		
	2013	2013 2012		2012		
SARs	\$ 184	\$	\$ 478	\$		
Restricted s	hares 1,391		3,798			
	\$ 1,575	\$	\$ 4,276	\$		

The following table summarizes unrecognized stock-based compensation and the remaining period over which such stock-based compensation is expected to be recognized as of September 30, 2013 (in thousands):

		Remaining
		years
SARs	\$ 421	1.6
Restricted shares	3,698	3.7
	\$ 4,119	

'

These amounts do not include the cost of any additional awards that may be granted in future periods nor any changes in our forfeiture rate. There were no SARs exercised during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013.

We did not have any income tax benefits realized from activity involving stock options, stock appreciation rights, or restricted shares for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013.

9. Net income (loss) per Share

The computations of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 were as follows (in thousands, except share data):

	Three Months EndedNine Months Ended September 30, 2013				
Basic net income (loss) attributable to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc.	\$	408	\$	(3,684)	
Average shares basic	4,7	95,736		4,768,294	
Effect of dilutive securities:					
Restricted shares		65,600			
SARs					
Average shares diluted	4,8	861,336		4,768,294	
Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to Health Insurance Innovation	ons,				
Inc.	\$	0.09	\$	(0.77)	
Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to Health Insurance					
Innovations, Inc.	\$	0.08	\$	(0.77)	
Potential common shares are included in the diluted net loss per share calculation when dilutive. Potential common					
\mathbf{A}	manta and a	to all amon	aniatia	n mights and ana	

shares consist of Class A common stock issuable through restricted stock grants and stock appreciation rights and are calculated using the treasury stock method.

The following securities were not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share because such inclusion would be anti-dilutive (in thousands):

	Three months ended September 30,		Nine months ended	d September 30,
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Restricted shares	385		405	
SARs	120		120	

Our former operating entity, HPI, was taxed as an S corporation for income tax purposes. Therefore, we were not subject to entity-level federal or state income taxation prior to the IPO. HPIH and HPIS are currently taxed as partnerships for federal income tax purposes; as a result, the members of HPIH and HPIS pay taxes with respect to their allocable shares of each company s respective net taxable income.

Following the IPO, HPIH and HPIS continue to operate in the United States as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We are subject to U.S. corporate federal, state and local income taxes that are reflected in our consolidated financial statements. The effective tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was (6.4)%. For the three months ended September 30, 2013, we incurred a benefit for income taxes of \$823,000. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we incurred a provision for income taxes of \$472,000.

We account for uncertainty in income taxes using a two-step process. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step requires us to estimate and measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement. Such amounts are subjective, as a determination must be made on the probability of various possible outcomes. We reevaluate uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis. This evaluation is based on factors including, but not limited to, changes in facts or circumstances, changes in tax law, effectively settled issues under audit, and new audit activity. Such a change in recognition and measurement could result in recognition of a tax benefit or an additional tax provision.

We evaluate quarterly the positive and negative evidence regarding the realization of net deferred tax assets. The carrying value of our net deferred tax assets is based on our belief that it is more likely than not that we will generate sufficient future taxable income to realize these deferred tax assets.

Our effective tax rate includes a rate detriment attributable to the fact that certain of our subsidiaries operate as limited liability companies which are not subject to federal or state income tax. Accordingly, a portion of our earnings or losses attributable to noncontrolling interests are not subject to corporate level taxes. Additionally, our effective tax rate includes a valuation allowance placed on all of our deferred tax assets, as our belief is more likely than not that our deferred tax assets will not be realized to offset future taxable income.

We project to have a current tax liability for the year, primarily as a result of differences between financial reporting and tax-based reporting for the timing of expense recognition. We do not project that the current tax liability will enable any portion of our deferred tax assets to be realized, and as such, the tax benefit that ordinarily accompanies a deferred tax asset is not available to offset the tax expense from our projected current tax liability. The resulting tax expense correlates with the determination of our effective tax rate.

As of December 31, 2012, we did not have any balance of gross unrecognized tax benefits, and as such, no amount would favorably affect the effective income tax rate in any future periods. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, there was no change to our total gross unrecognized tax benefit. We believe that there will not be a significant increase or decrease to the uncertain tax positions within 12 months of the reporting date.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

We lease office spaces to conduct the operations of HPIH, ICE and Secured which expire in 2017, 2015 and 2014, respectively. We also lease certain equipment under operating leases, which expire in 2015. The office space operating lease agreements contain rent holidays and rent escalation provisions. Rent holidays and rent escalation provisions are considered in determining straight-line rent expense to be recorded over the lease term. The difference between cash rent payments and straight-line rent expense was \$68,000 and \$63,000 as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. Total rent expense under all operating leases, which includes equipment, was \$96,000 and \$74,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively and \$210,000 and \$132,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively and selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

BimSym Agreements

On August 1, 2012, we entered into a software assignment agreement (Agreement) with BimSym eBusiness Solutions, Inc. (BimSym) for our exclusive ownership of all rights, title and interest in the technology platform (A.R.I.E.S. System) developed by BimSym and utilized by us. As a result of the executed Agreement, we purchased the A.R.I.E.S. System for \$45,000. The consideration of \$45,000 was capitalized and recorded as an intangible asset. In connection with this Agreement, we simultaneously entered into a master services agreement for the technology, under which we are required to make monthly payments of \$26,000 for five years. After the five-year term, this agreement automatically renews for one-year terms unless 60 days notice is given by us.

Additionally, we also entered into an exclusivity agreement with BimSym whereby neither BimSym nor any of its affiliates will create, market or sell a software, system or service with the same or similar functionality as that of

A.R.I.E.S. System under which we are required to make monthly payments of \$16,000 for five years. The present value of these payments was capitalized and recorded as an intangible asset with a corresponding liability on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Legal Proceedings

As of September 30, 2013, we had no significant outstanding legal proceedings. We are subject to certain legal proceedings and claims that may arise in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, we do not have a potential liability related to any current legal proceedings and claims that would individually, or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, liquidity, results of operations, or cash flows.

12. Fair Value Measurements

We measure and report financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (referred to as an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The fair value of our financial assets and liabilities is determined by using three levels of input, which are defined as follows:

- Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2: Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability
- Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The categorization of a financial instrument within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

We utilize the market approach to measure the fair value of our financial assets. As subjectivity exists with respect to many of the valuation techniques, the fair value estimates we have disclosed may not equal prices that we may ultimately realize if the assets are sold or the liabilities are settled with third parties. Below is a description of our valuation methods.

Short-term investments. Our short-term investments include an available for sale marketable security and certificates of deposit. The marketable security is a publicly-traded fixed-income mutual fund with a quoted price in an active market. The certificates of deposit have maturities ranging from three months to nine months. The short-term investments are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Contingent consideration for business acquisition. The contingent consideration related to the acquisition of Secured includes a note payable and a contingent equity liability, as described in Note 2, and are valued using external valuation specialists. The inputs include discount rates reflecting the credit risk, risk of the underlying outcome of the results required by Secured to receive payment and the nature of such payments. The underlying outcomes are subject to actual revenues and earnings relative to the target results in the respective instruments or agreement. These liabilities are included in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Noncompete obligation. Our noncompete obligation, an exclusivity agreement with the developer of A.R.I.E.S as described in Note 11 are primarily valued using nonbinding market prices as stated in the agreement that are corroborated by observable market data. The inputs and fair value are reviewed for reasonableness and may be further validated by comparison to publicly available information or compared to multiple independent valuation sources. The noncompete obligation is classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of others, credit card transactions receivable, accounts receivable, advanced commissions, carriers and vendors payable, commissions payable, and accounts payable and accrued

expenses as of September 30, 2013 approximate fair value because of the short-term duration of these instruments.

As of September 30, 2013, our short-term investments, which include an available-for-sale marketable security (a mutual fund), certificates of deposit with maturities greater than three months to nine months, our noncompete obligation, notes payable and contingent equity consideration measured at fair value were as follows (\$ in thousands):

Carrying Value as of Fair Value Measurement as of September 30, 2013 September 30,						
	2013	I	Level 1	L	evel 2	Level 3
\$	15,000	\$	15,000	\$		\$
	6,414		6,414			
\$	21,414	\$	21,414	\$		\$
\$	665	\$		\$	656	\$
	1,718				1,718	
	3,068				3,068	
\$	5,451	\$		\$	5,442	\$
	Sep \$ \$ \$	September 30, 2013 \$ 15,000 6,414 \$ 21,414 \$ 21,414 \$ 665 1,718 3,068	September 30, 2013 I \$ 15,000 \$ 6,414 \$ 21,414 \$ \$ 665 \$ 1,718 3,068	September 30, 2013 Level 1 \$ 15,000 \$ 15,000 6,414 6,414 \$ 21,414 \$ 21,414 \$ 665 \$ 1,718 3,068 \$ 3,068	September 30, 2013 Level 1 L \$ 15,000 \$ 15,000 \$ \$ 15,000 \$ 15,000 \$ \$ 15,000 \$ 15,000 \$ \$ 21,414 \$ 21,414 \$ \$ 665 \$ \$ \$ \$ 1,718 3,068 \$ \$	September 30, 2013 Level 1 Level 2 \$ 15,000 \$ 15,000 \$ \$ 15,000 \$ 15,000 \$ \$ 15,000 \$ 15,000 \$ \$ 15,000 \$ \$ 6,414 \$ \$ 21,414 \$ 21,414 \$ \$ \$ 665 \$ \$ 656 \$ \$ 656 1,718 1,718 3,068 3,068 \$ \$

As of December 31, 2013, our long-term debt and noncompete obligation measured at fair value were as follows (\$ in thousands):

			Fair Value Measurement as of December 31, 2012			f December
	Carrying	g Value as of	Level			
	Decem	ber 31, 2012	1	L	evel 2	Level 3
Liabilities:						
Long-term debt, including current portion	\$	3,294	\$	\$	3,314	\$
Noncompete obligation, including current						
portion		781			779	
	\$	4,075	\$	\$	4,093	\$

13. Segments

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker, or decision-making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing our performance. Our chief operating decision-maker is considered to be the chief executive officer (CEO). The CEO reviews our financial information in a manner substantially similar to the accompanying consolidated financial statements. In addition, our operations, revenues, and decision-making functions are based solely in the United States. Therefore, management has concluded that we operate in one operating and geographic segment.

14. Related Party Transactions

Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC

HPI, by virtue of its Series B Membership interests in HPIH, of which we are managing member, is a related party, and the beneficial interests in HPI are held by Mr. Kosloske. During the three months ended September 30, 2013, HPIH paid distributions of \$74,000 to entities beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske related to 2012 state income taxes, pursuant to the operating agreement entered into by HPIH and HPI. Distributions of \$1.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 include \$944,000 of distributions during the three months ended March 31, 2013, all of which were made prior to the IPO.

TSG Agency, LLC

In August 2012, we entered into a promissory note with Ivan Spinner, who controls TSG, in the amount of \$100,000 for the purpose of funding advanced commissions. The note was non-interest bearing and required equal monthly payments of \$25,000 beginning September 20, 2012 and ending December 20, 2012. This loan was modified on October 18, 2012 whereby the November and December payments were deferred to January 2, 2013 and February 1,

2013, respectively. The note had a balance of \$50,000 at December 31, 2012 and was repaid during the first quarter of 2013.

On March 14, 2013, the Company terminated its contract rights with TSG for an aggregate cash price of \$5.5 million. In conjunction with the transaction, Ivan Spinner joined HII as an employee.

On June 30, 2013, we purchased TSG s interest in ICE for a cash payment to TSG of \$90,000. See Note 2 for further information on this transaction.

Tax Receivable Agreement

On February 13, 2013, we entered into a tax receivable agreement with the holders of Series B Membership Interests, which are beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske. See Note 1 for further description of the tax receivable agreement.

As of September 30, 2013, we have made no such payments under the tax receivable agreement. As of September 30, 2013, we would be obligated to pay Mr. Kosloske \$374,000 if our taxes payable on our subsequent annual tax return filings are shown to be reduced as result of an increase in our tax basis due to the issuance of 100,000 shares of Class A common stock subsequent to the IPO under the IPO underwriters option. See Note 6 for further information on this issuance of Class A common stock.

ITEM 2 MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made statements in Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Item 1A. Risk Factors and in other sections of this report that are forward-looking statements. All below, Part II. statements other than statements of historical fact included in this quarterly report are forward-looking statements. You can identify forward-looking statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. These statements may include words such as may, might, will, should, expects, anticipates, plans, believ potential or continue, the negative of these terms and other comparable terminology. These forward-looking predicts. statements, which are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us, may include projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth strategies, anticipated trends in our business and other future events or circumstances. These statements are only predictions based on our current expectations and projections about future events. There are important factors that could cause our actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements and other future events or circumstances to differ materially from the results, level of activity, performance or achievements, events or circumstances expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, including those factors discussed Part II. Item 1A. Risk Factors below and Part II. Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2013 and June 30, 2013. You should specifically consider the numerous risks outlined under Part II. Item 1A. Risk Factors below and Part II. Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Ouarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2013 and June 30, 2013.

We cannot guarantee future results, level of activity, performance, achievements, events or circumstances. We are under no duty to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of this report to conform our prior statements to actual results or revised expectations.

Business

In this quarterly report, unless the context suggests otherwise, references in this report to the Company, we, us and o refer (1) prior to the February 13, 2013 initial public offering (IPO) of the Class A common stock of Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. and related transactions, to Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC (HPI) and its consolidated subsidiaries and (2) after our IPO and related transactions to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. The terms HII, HPIH and ICE refer to the stand-alone entities Health Insurance Innovations, Inc., Health Plan Intermediaries Holdings, LLC, and Insurance Center for Excellence, LLC, respectively. HPIH and ICE are consolidated subsidiaries of HII. The term Secured refers to (a) prior to or at the time of their July 17, 2013 acquisition by us, Sunrise Health Plans, Inc., Sunrise Group Marketing, Inc. and Secured Software Solutions, Inc., collectively, and (b) following our July 17, 2013 acquisition, the entities described in (a) and the limited liability companies into which such entities were converted shortly following such acquisition.

We are a leading developer and administrator of affordable, web-based individual health insurance plans and ancillary products. Our highly scalable, proprietary, web-based technology platform allows for mass distribution of and online enrollment in our large and diverse portfolio of affordable health insurance offerings.

Our technology platform provides customers, whom we refer to as members, immediate access to our products through our distribution partners anytime, anyplace. The health insurance products we develop are underwritten by insurance carrier companies, and we assume no underwriting or insurance risk. Members can price and tailor product selections to meet their needs, buy policies and print policy documents and identification cards in real-time. Our sales are executed online and offer instant electronic fulfillment. Our technology platform uses abbreviated online applications, some with health questionnaires, to provide an immediate accept or reject decision on applications for all

products that we offer. Once an application is accepted, individuals can use our automated payment system to complete the enrollment process and obtain instant electronic access to their policy fulfillment documents, including the insurance policy, benefits schedule and identification cards. We receive credit card and Automated Clearing House (ACH) payments directly from members at the time of sale. Our technology platform provides significant operating leverage as we add members and reduces the costs associated with marketing, selling, underwriting and administering policies.

We are an industry leader in the sale of 12-month short-term medical (STM) insurance plans, an alternative to traditional individual major medical (IMM) plans which provide lifetime renewable coverage. STM plans generally offer qualifying individuals comparable benefits for fixed short-term durations of six or 12 months at approximately half the cost of IMM plans. While applications for IMM insurance may take up to 60 days to process, our STM plans feature a streamlined underwriting process offering immediate coverage options. We also offer guaranteed-issue hospital indemnity plans for individuals under the age of 65, which pay fixed cash benefits for covered procedures and services, and a variety of ancillary products such as cancer/critical illness plans, pharmacy benefit cards, dental plans and vision plans that are frequently purchased as supplements to STM and hospital indemnity plans. We design and structure insurance products on behalf of insurance carrier companies, market them to individuals through our

large network of distributors and manage member relations via our online member portal, which is available 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Our online enrollment process allows us to aggregate and analyze consumer data and purchasing habits to track market trends and drive product innovation. We have established relationships with several highly rated insurance carriers, including Nationwide, Companion Life, United States Fire, ING, Markel, HCC Life Insurance Company and CIGNA, among others.

We have established a large independent distribution network that consists of 83 licensed agent call centers, an increase of 51 from September 30, 2012, and 243 wholesalers that work with over 9,700 licensed brokers as of September 30, 2013. Our data-driven product design, technology platform and extensive distribution network have enabled us to grow our revenues by 26.7% for the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and by 35.6% for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2012. As discussed further below, in July 2013, we completed the acquisition of Secured, a significant distributor. This transaction is expected to provide us with additional benefits such as reduced enterprise risk from increased captive distribution, addition of sales lead management expertise to maximize the number of new insurance policies produced by each dollar invested in sales leads, and opportunities through technological and cost-saving synergies.

We focus on the large and under-penetrated segment of the U.S. population who are uninsured or underinsured, which includes individuals who are unable to afford traditional IMM premiums, individuals not covered by employer-sponsored insurance plans, such as those who are self-employed as well as small business owners and their employees, and underserved gap populations that require insurance due to changes caused by life events, such as new graduates, divorcees, early retirees, military discharges, the unemployed, part-time and seasonal employees and temporary workers. Our target market consists of approximately 64 million Americans, including approximately 50 million Americans who were uninsured in 2010, according to the U.S. Census Bureau, and approximately 14 million non-elderly Americans who purchased individual health insurance plans in 2010, according to a 2010 Kaiser Family Foundation survey. We expect the number of uninsured and underinsured to significantly increase due to the rising costs of traditional IMM plans and a decline in employer-sponsored health insurance programs due to rising benefit plan costs.

Participants in the health insurance industry are focused on the potential implications of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA). This legislation is expected to have extensive impacts on the provisions of health insurance plans that can be sold to individuals and the resulting economics to insurers. Starting in the second quarter of 2013, some industry participants began to take advantage of a PPACA loophole with the goal of increasing 2013 sales of certain products so that they can be continued until renewal dates in 2014 by modifying individual major medical policy terms, premiums and commissions paid to distributors. Some of these actions have had the effect of increasing competition with our insurance products or simply causing confusion among health plan distributors and consumers. It is unclear when and to what extent these factors will abate, but management expects that these policies will no longer be permitted to be sold or renewed as of 2014. Very positive year over year growth is still expected but the rate of growth in our core medical policy sales slowed beginning early in the second quarter. However, we remain confident in the appeal of our product offerings, and expect increased growth once PPACA is fully implemented.

Our Corporate Structure

Overview

HII is a holding company that was incorporated as a Delaware corporation on October 26, 2012 for the purpose of facilitating an IPO of common equity and to become the sole managing member of HPIH. Its principal asset is a controlling equity interest in HPIH. On February 7, 2013, a registration statement filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) related to shares of Class A common stock of HII was declared effective, and the price

of such shares was set at \$14.00 per share. The IPO closed on February 13, 2013. Prior to the IPO, HII had not engaged in any business or other activities except in connection with its formation and the IPO.

After the effective date of the registration statement but prior to the completion of the IPO, the limited liability company agreement of HPIH was amended and restated to modify its capital structure by replacing the different classes of interests previously held by HPIH owners with a single new class of units called Series B Membership Interests. In addition, each Series B Membership Interest holder received one share of HII s Class B common stock. We and our then-existing owners also entered into an exchange agreement under which (subject to the terms of the exchange agreement) they have the right to exchange their Series B Membership Interests together with an equal number of shares of our Class B common stock, for shares of our Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis, subject to customary conversion rate adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends and reclassifications. These transactions are collectively referred to as the Reorganization Transactions.

The Company, as a result of the IPO and the related Reorganization Transactions, became the sole managing member of, and has a controlling equity interest in, HPIH. As the sole managing member of HPIH, HII operates and controls all of the business and affairs of HPIH and, through HPIH and its subsidiaries, conducts our business. HII consolidates the financial results of HPIH and its subsidiaries, and records noncontrolling interests for the economic interest in HPIH held by the Series B Membership Interests holders. As of September 30, 2013, the noncontrolling Series B Membership Interests holders is 61.9%.

History

The Company was formed as HPI, a Florida limited liability company. In August 2008, the Naylor Group Partners, LLC (Naylor) made a capital contribution to HPI in exchange for a 50% ownership interest in HPI. In September 2011, HPI purchased all of the units owned by Naylor for \$5.3 million plus financing costs of \$135,000. HPI financed a portion of the purchase price by entering into a loan agreement with a bank for \$4.3 million. The remaining purchase price was funded with HPI cash and a contribution from Michael Kosloske (Mr. Kosloske), our chairman, president and chief executive officer and the sole member of HPI.

In June 2012, we acquired an 80% interest in ICE, which conducts call center sales operations and trains third-party insurance agents to sell our products and is consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. On June 30, 2013, we purchased the remaining 20% interest in ICE, which is now a wholly-owned subsidiary.

In October 2012, HII was incorporated in the State of Delaware to facilitate our recently completed IPO.

On November 7, 2012, interests in the assets and liabilities of HPI were transferred to two subsidiaries, HPIH (99.0099%) and Health Plan Intermediaries Sub, LLC (HPIS) (0.9901%), each of which was created in October 2012. On November 8, 2012, Health Plan Intermediaries II, LLC, a related party, made a capital contribution of \$12,010 to HPIS, and that cash along with the 0.9901% interest was contributed by HPIS to HPIH in exchange for a 1.0% interest in HPIH.

We expect that future exchanges of Series B Membership Interests (together with an equal number of our Class B common shares) for shares of our Class A common stock (which Series B Membership Interests will immediately be recapitalized into Series A Membership Interests) will result in increases in the tax basis in our share of the tangible and intangible assets of HPIH. We expect that these increases in tax basis, which would not have been available but for our new holding company structure, will reduce the amount of tax that we would otherwise be required to pay in the future. We will be required to pay a portion of the cash savings we actually realize from such increase, or are deemed to realize in the case of an early termination payment by us, a change in control or a material breach by us of our obligations under a tax receivable agreement to the existing and certain future holders of Series B Membership Interests (HPI and HPIS, which are beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske), pursuant to the tax receivable agreement. Furthermore, payments under the tax receivable agreement will give rise to additional tax benefits and therefore additional payments under the tax receivable agreement itself. HPIH is currently taxed as a partnership for federal income tax purposes; as a result, the members of HPIH pay taxes with respect to their allocable shares of its net taxable income. The earnings of HII are subject to federal income taxation.

On July 17, 2013, we entered into a stock purchase agreement with Joseph Safina, Howard Knaster and Jorge Saavedra, pursuant to which we acquired from the Sellers all of the outstanding equity of each in a licensed insurance broker, a call center and sales lead management company and an intellectual property holding company (that comprise

Secured), for a cash payment of \$10.0 million, plus approximately \$6.7 million of contingent cash and equity consideration that is primarily tied to the performance of the acquired businesses. The funding of the \$10.0 million cash portion of the purchase price was provided primarily from net proceeds from the IPO.

Key Business Metrics

In addition to traditional financial metrics, we rely upon the following key business metrics to evaluate our business performance and facilitate long-term strategic planning:

Premium equivalents

As the managing general underwriter of our individual health insurance plans and ancillary products, we receive amounts due in connection with our plans on behalf of the providers of the services. We refer to these total collections as premium equivalents, which typically represent a combination of premiums, fees for discount benefit plans (non-insurance benefit products that supplements or enhances an insurance product), fees for distributors and our enrollment fees. From premium equivalents, we remit risk premium, representing the amounts we collect and remit to carriers on their behalf, and amounts earned by discount benefit plan providers, who we refer to as third-party obligors, such carriers and third-party obligors being the ultimate parties responsible for providing the insurance coverage or discount benefits to the member. Our revenues consist of the balance of the premium equivalents.

We collect premium equivalents upon the initial sale of the plan and then monthly upon each subsequent periodic payment under each plan. We receive most premium equivalents through online credit card or ACH processing. As a result, we have limited accounts receivable. We remit the risk premium to the applicable carriers and the amounts earned by third-party obligors on a monthly basis based on the respective compensation arrangements.

We have included premium equivalents in this report because it is a key measure used by our management to understand and evaluate our core operating performance and trends, to prepare and approve our annual budget and to develop short- and long-term operational plans. In particular, the inclusion of premium equivalents can provide a useful measure for period-to-period comparisons of our business. However, premium equivalents does not represent, and should not be considered as, an alternative to revenues, as determined in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Premium equivalents has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP.

For the three months ended September 30, 2013, our premium equivalents were \$26.0 million, compared to \$20.8 for three months ended September 30, 2012, representing a year-over-year increase of 24.9%. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, our premium equivalents were \$72.3 million, compared to \$54.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, representing a year-over-year increase of 32.5% in premium equivalents.

The following table presents a reconciliation of premium equivalents to revenues for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 (\$ in thousands):

	Three Months Ended		Nine Mon	ths Ended
	September 30,		Septem	ber 30,
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Premium equivalents	\$ 25,977	\$ 20,792	\$ 72,256	\$ 54,549
Less risk premium	(10,576)	(8,685)	(29,686)	(23,296)
Less amounts earned by third-party obligors	(652)	(463)	(1,752)	(1,151)
Revenues	\$ 14,749	\$ 11,644	\$ 40,818	\$ 30,102
fanas				

Plans in force

We consider a plan to be in force when we have issued a member his or her insurance policy or discount benefit plan and have collected the applicable premium payments and/or discount benefit fees. Our plans in force are an important indicator of our expected revenues, as we receive a monthly commission for up to six months for our six-month STM plans, up to 12 months for our 12-month STM plans and often more than 12 months for our hospital indemnity and discount benefit plans, provided that the policy or discount benefit plan is not cancelled. A member may be enrolled in more than one policy or discount benefit plan simultaneously. A plan becomes inactive upon notification to us of termination of its policy or discount benefit plan, when the member s policy or discount benefit plan expires or following non-payment of premiums or discount benefit fees when due. The following table presents the number of our policies in force by product type as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands, except percentages):

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance	Innovations,	Inc Form 10-Q
--------------------------------	--------------	---------------

	2013	2012	Change (%)
STM	27,473	24,416	12.5%
Hospital indemnity	8,823	7,638	15.5%
Ancillary products	31,301	21,243	47.3%
Total	67,597	53,297	26.8%

Non GAAP gross margin

We define non GAAP gross margin as revenue less third party commissions and credit card and ACH fees. Non GAAP gross margin does not represent, and should not be considered as, an alternative to revenues, as determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP. We have included non GAAP gross margin in this press release because it is a key measure used by our management to understand and evaluate our core operating performance and trends, to prepare and approve our annual budget and to develop short-term and long-term operational plans. In particular, the inclusion of non GAAP gross margin has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under U.S. GAAP.

The following table presents a reconciliation of premium equivalents and revenues to non GAAP gross margin (\$ in thousands):

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Nine Mon Septem	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Premium equivalents	\$ 25,977	\$ 20,792	\$ 72,256	\$ 54,549
Less risk premium	(10,576)	(8,685)	(29,686)	(23,296)
Less amounts earned by third party obligors	(652)	(463)	(1,752)	(1,151)
Revenues	14,749	\$ 11,644	\$ 40,818	\$ 30,102
Less third-party commissions	7,928	7,643	24,438	20,093
Less credit card and ACH fees	313	270	861	693
Non GAAP gross margin	\$ 6,508	\$ 3,731	\$ 15,519	\$ 9,316

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

We define EBITDA as net (loss) income before interest (income) expense, income taxes and depreciation and amortization. We have included EBITDA in this report because it is a key measure used by our management and board of directors to understand and evaluate our core operating performance and trends, to prepare and approve our annual budget, and to develop short- and long-term operational plans. In particular, the exclusion of certain expenses in calculating EBITDA can provide a useful measure for period-to-period comparisons of our business. However, EBITDA does not represent, and should not be considered as, an alternative to net income or cash flows from operations, each as determined in accordance with GAAP. Other companies may calculate EBITDA differently than we do. EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP.

To calculate adjusted EBITDA, we calculate EBITDA, which is then further adjusted for items that are not part of regular operating activities, including acquisition costs, contract termination costs, and other non-cash items such as non-cash stock-based compensation. Adjusted EBITDA does not represent, and should not be considered as, an alternative to net income or cash flows from operations, each as determined in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or U.S. GAAP. We have presented adjusted EBITDA because we consider it an important supplemental measure of our performance and believe that it is frequently used by analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of companies. Other companies may calculate adjusted EBITDA differently

than we do. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under U.S. GAAP.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net income (loss) to EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 (\$ in thousands):

	Three Months Ended September 30,				١	Nine Months Ended September 30,		
	2013 2012				2013	20		
Net income (loss) (1)	\$	514	\$	894	\$	(7,827)	\$ 2,	586
Interest (income) expense		(7)		67		14		194
Depreciation and amortization		423		229		913		771
(Benefit) provision for income taxes		(823)				472		
EBITDA		107		1,190		(6,428)	3,	551
Non-cash stock based compensation		1,575				4,276		
Contract termination expense						5,500		
Acquisition costs		107				301		
Adjusted EBITDA	\$	1,789	\$	1,190	\$	3,649	\$3,	551

(1)Net loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 includes a one-time expense of \$5.5 million related to the termination of contract rights with TSG, a managing general agent of the Company. For further information, see Comparison of the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 below and Note 2 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Results of Operations

The following table is a summary of our statements of operations as a percentage of our total revenues.

			Nine M	onths
	Three Month	is Ended	End	ed
	Septembe	er 30,	Septemb	ber 30,
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Revenues	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%
Third-party commissions	53.8%	65.6%	59.9%	66.7%
Credit cards and ACH fees	2.1%	2.3%	2.1%	2.3%
Contract termination expense			13.5%	
Selling, general and administrative expenses	43.0%	21.9%	39.2%	19.2%
Depreciation and amortization	2.9%	2.0%	2.2%	2.6%
Total operating costs and expenses	101.8%	91.8%	116.9%	90.8%
(Loss) income from operations	(1.8)%	8.2%	(16.9)%	9.2%
Other expense (income):				
Interest (income) expense		0.6%		0.6%
Other expense (income)	0.4%	(0.1)%	1.1%	(0.1)%
		. ,		, ,

Net (loss) income before income taxes	(2.2)%	7.7%	(18.0)%	8.7%
(Benefit) Provision for income taxes	(5.6)%		1.2%	
Net income (loss)	3.4%	7.7%	(19.2)%	8.7%
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests	0.7%	(0.4)%	(10.1)%	(0.2)%
Net income (loss) attributable to Health Insurance Innovations,				
Inc. and Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC (1)	2.7%	8.1%	(9.1)%	8.9%

(1) As of September 30, 2013, our only material asset is the ownership of approximately 38.1% of the Membership Interests in HPIH, and our only business is to act as the sole managing member of HPIH. Accordingly, we consolidate the financial results of HPIH into our financial statements. The remaining 61.9% ownership interests held by the other members of HPIH, consisting of HPI and HPIS, are accounted for as a noncontrolling interest in our consolidated financial statements. See Note 1 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further information on our basis of presentation.

Comparison of Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

The following tables present our historical results of operations and the changes in these results in dollars and as a percentage for the periods presented:

	Three Months Ended September 30,						
	2	2013	2	012	Cł	nanges (\$)	Change (%)
			(in thou	isands, e	except	percentages	5)
Revenues	\$ 1	14,749	\$ 1	1,644	\$	3,105	26.7%
Third-party commissions		7,928		7,643		285	3.7%
Credit cards and ACH fees		313		270		43	15.9%
Selling, general and administrative expenses		6,348		2,552		3,796	>100.0%
Depreciation and amortization		423		229		194	84.7%
Total operating costs and expenses	1	15,012	1	0,694		4,318	40.4%
(Loss) income from operations		(263)		950		(1,213)	>(100.0)%
Other expense (income):							
Interest (income) expense		(7)		67		(74)	>(100.0)%
Other expense (income)		53		(11)		64	>(100.0)%
Net (loss) income before income taxes		(309)		894		(1,203)	>(100.0)%
Benefit for income taxes		(823)				(823)	> 100.0%
Net income		514		894		(380)	(42.5)%
Net income (loss) income attributable to							
noncontrolling interests		106		(43)		149	>(100.0)%
Net income attributable to Health Insurance							
Innovations, Inc. and Health Plan Intermediaries,							
LLC	\$	408	\$	937	\$	(529)	(56.5)%
Innovations, Inc. and Health Plan Intermediaries,		408	\$	937	\$	(529)	(56.5)%

	Nine Months Ended September 30,			
	2013	2012	Changes (\$)	Change (%)
	(i	in thousands, e	except percentage	es)
Revenues	\$ 40,818	\$ 30,102	\$ 10,716	35.6%
Third-party commissions	24,438	20,093	4,345	21.6%
Credit cards and ACH fees	861	693	168	24.2%
Contract termination expense	5,500		5,500	> 100.0%
Selling, general and administrative expenses	16,010	5,786	10,224	>100.0%
Depreciation and amortization	913	771	142	18.4%
Total operating costs and expenses	47,722	27,343	20,379	74.5%
(Loss) income from operations	(6,904)	2,759	(9,663)	>(100.0)%
Other expense (income):				
Interest expense	14	194	(180)	(92.8)%
Other expense (income):	437	(21)	458	>(100.0)%
Net (loss) income before income taxes	(7,355)	2,586	(9,941)	>(100.0)%

Provision for income taxes	472		472	> 100.0%
Net (loss) income	(7,827)	2,586	(10,413)	>(100.0)%
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests	(4,143)	(63)	(4,080)	> 100.0%
Net (loss) income attributable to Health Insurance				
Innovations, Inc. and Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC	\$ (3,684)	\$ 2,649	\$ (6,333)	>(100.0)%
Revenues				

Our revenues consist primarily of commissions earned for our insurance policies and discount benefit plans issued to members, enrollment fees paid by members and administration fees paid by members as a direct result of our enrollment services. We recognize revenues upon the member s acceptance of a policy and ratably over the active term of the policy. We expect our revenues to increase as we add new members.

Our commissions represent premiums and fees for discount benefit plans, net of risk premium and amounts earned by third-party obligors, respectively. We recognize commissions as we collect the premiums and fees ratably over the active term of the policy for discount benefit plans.

Commission rates for all insurance plans are approved in advance by the relevant carrier. Our commission rates and the length of the commission period typically vary by carrier and plan type. Under our carrier compensation arrangements, the commission rate schedule that is in effect on the policy effective date will govern the commissions over the life of the plan.

We continue to receive a commission payment until the plan expires or is terminated. Accordingly, a portion of our monthly revenues is predictable on a month-to-month basis and revenues increase in direct proportion to the growth we experience in the number of plans in force.

Revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2013 were \$14.7 million, an increase of \$3.1 million, or 26.7%, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2012. Revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 were \$40.8 million, an increase of \$10.7 million, or 35.6%, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2012. The increases were primarily due to the increase in the number of policies in force. The increase in policies in force was due primarily to the continuing expansion of our distribution network. In addition, the number of ancillary policies in force as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 increased as we implemented a strategy to focus on including ancillary products to complement our core medical policy sales.

Third-party Commissions

Our third-party commissions consist of fees and commissions paid to distributors for selling our products to members, which we pay monthly for existing members and on a weekly basis for new members. Generally, we have expected third-party commissions as a percentage of revenue to remain generally consistent with prior periods; however, as noted above, in July 2013, we acquired Secured, a significant distributor, and third-party commissions decreased as a percentage of revenues during the three months ended September 30, 2013. As a result of the acquisition, we expect third-party commissions to decrease on a consolidated basis in future periods, as the commissions paid to Secured are eliminated in consolidation.

Third-party commissions for the three months ended September 30, 2013 were \$7.9 million, an increase of \$285,000, or 3.7%, compared to three months ended September 30, 2012. Third-party commissions for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 were \$24.4 million, an increase of \$4.3 million, or 21.6%, compared to nine months ended September 30, 2012. The increases in third-party commissions were primarily due to an increase in the number of plans in force; however, the rate of increase was lower than the rate of the increase in revenues due to the acquisition of Secured on July 17, 2013. The acquisition enabled the Company to save \$1.2 million in commissions expense in the three months ended September 30, 2013.

Third-party commissions represented 53.8% and 30.5% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the three months ended September 30, 2013, as compared to 65.6% and 36.8% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the three months ended September 30, 2012. Third-party commissions represented 59.9% and 33.8% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 as compared to 66.7% and 36.8% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. These decreases were primarily due to the acquisition of Secured and the elimination of override commission payments previously paid to TSG Agency, LLC (TSG). We terminated certain contract rights with TSG in March 2013. See Contract Termination Expense below.

Credit Card and ACH Fees

Our credit card and ACH fees are fees paid to our banks and processors for the collection of credit card and ACH payments. We expect credit card and ACH fees as a percentage of revenue to remain generally consistent with prior periods.

Credit card and ACH fees for the three months ended September 30, 2013 were \$313,000, an increase of \$43,000 or 15.9%, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2012. Credit card and ACH fees for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 were \$861,000, an increase of \$168,000 or 24.2%, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2012. The increases in credit card and ACH fees were primarily due to the increase in the number of plans in force.

Credit card and ACH fees represented 2.1% and 1.2% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, compared to 2.3% and 1.3% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012.

Contract Termination Expense

Contract termination expense relates to a payment of \$5.5 million to terminate certain contract rights with TSG, a managing general agent for the Company, during March 2013. This transaction was treated as a current period expense on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.



Selling, general and administrative Expenses

Our selling, general and administrative expenses primarily consist of personnel costs, which represent salaries, bonuses, commissions, stock-based compensation, payroll taxes and benefits. Selling, general and administrative expenses also include selling and marketing expenses and travel costs associated with obtaining new distributor relationships. In addition, these expenses also include expenses for outside professional services and technology expenses, including legal, audit and financial services and the maintenance of our administrative technology platform. Selling, general and administrative expenses have increased as we have added capabilities due to the anticipated growth of our business and infrastructure and the costs associated with being a publicly-traded company, including costs associated with SEC reporting and compliance, developing and maintaining internal controls over financial reporting, stock-based compensation, insurance, investor relations and other related costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2013 were \$6.3 million, an increase of \$3.8 million, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2012. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses was primarily attributable to the expansion of our business and our status as a publicly-traded company beginning in 2013.

The Company experienced an increase in selling, general and administrative expense of \$1.3 million due to the Secured acquisition. All selling, general and administrative expenses associated with Secured incurred since the acquisition date are consolidated within HII.

During the three months ended September 30, 2013, we incurred \$1.6 million in stock-based compensation expense from grants to our directors, officers and employees under our long-term incentive plan that we implemented subsequent to the IPO. Additional personnel costs increased \$309,000 as the result of an increase in payroll in connection with our business expansion. In addition, director and officer insurance expense increased by \$127,000, as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2012. Also we incurred \$40,000 in director compensation.

Professional and legal fees increased \$136,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2013, as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2012 primarily due to professional costs specifically related to the acquisition of Secured.

Other administrative expenses associated with operating ICE increased by \$149,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2012, as a result of growth of business in ICE. These increases primarily relate to obtaining outside leads for \$96,000 and increase in personnel cost by \$43,000. Other increases in selling, general and administrative expenses related to expanded company operations, including greater advertising, travel, and SEC filing fees increased by \$148,000, compared to three months ended September 30, 2012.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for nine months ended September 30, 2013 were \$16.0 million, an increase of \$10.2 million compared to nine months ended September 30, 2012. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses was attributable to the expansion of our business, preparations for our IPO, acquisition of Secured, and our status as a publicly-traded company.

The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses related to Secured is \$1.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. All selling, general and administrative expenses associated with Secured since the acquisition date are consolidated within HII. We expect higher selling, general and administrative expenses in future periods as we have added executives to implement various internal growth strategies.

We incurred \$4.3 million in stock-based compensation expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 from grants to directors, officers and employees under our long-term incentive plan. Additional personnel costs increased \$1.2 million as the result of an increase in our payroll in connection with our business expansion. In addition director and officer insurance expense increased by \$352,000, as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2012. We also incurred \$117,000 in director compensation and other administrative expenses associated with operating ICE of approximately \$734,000.

Professional fees increased \$1.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2012, including a \$1.4 million increase in accounting, tax, and other financial consulting services and \$400,000 increase in legal fees.

Other increases related to our operations, such as advertising and SEC filing fees, increased by \$236,000, compared to nine months ended September 30, 2012.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense is primarily related to the amortization of acquired intangible assets as well as depreciation of property and equipment used in our business.

Depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended September 30, 2013 was \$423,000, an increase of \$194,000, or 84.7%, compared to three months ended September 30, 2012. Depreciation and amortization expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was \$913,000, an increase of \$142,000 or 18.4%, compared to nine months ended September 30, 2012.

Interest (income) expense

Interest expense primarily consists of interest incurred on a bank note that was repaid in February 2013 with a portion of the proceeds from the IPO and interest expense on a long-term noncompete agreement. Interest expense is offset by interest income earned on cash equivalents and short-term investments.

Interest income for the three months ended September 30, 2013 was \$7,000, as compared to interest expense of \$67,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2012. We did not incur any interest expense from the term loan for the three months ended September 30, 2013, as the loan was repaid in February 2013. During the three months ended September 30, 2013, we earned interest income on our cash equivalents and short-term investments.

Interest expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was \$14,000, a decrease of \$180,000 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2012. Interest expense decreased primarily due to the bank loan agreement that we repaid in full subsequent to the closing of our IPO and was partially offset by interest income on cash equivalents and short-term investments.

Other expense (income)

Other expense (income) includes expenses payable to Mr. Kosloske pursuant to the tax receivable agreement as described above and fees charged to distributors for advanced commissions, whereby we pay distributors commissions on policies sold in advance of when they would ordinarily be due to the distributor. These advanced commissions are made to distributors with an established track record of selling our products. Advanced commission fees range from 0% up to 2% of the premiums for each month that we advance commissions. Advanced commissions to a distributor are based upon the amount of premium expected to be realized by us based on the remaining policy months multiplied by a distributor s commission rate.

Other expense for the three months ended September 30, 2013 was \$53,000, compared to other income of \$11,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2012. Other expense for the three months ended September 30, 2013 included a \$64,000 fair value adjustment related to the contingent consideration from the acquisition of Secured and a \$15,000 increase to the payable to Mr. Kosloske under the tax receivable agreement, partially offset by \$26,000 of fees charged to distributors for advanced commissions.

Other expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was \$437,000, compared to other income of \$21,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. Other expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 included \$374,000 of expense payable to Mr. Kosloske under the tax receivable agreement, a \$64,000 fair value adjustment related to the contingent consideration from the acquisition of Secured and a \$71,000 loss on extinguishment of debt. These expenses were partially offset by \$72,000 of fees charged to distributors for advanced commissions.

(Benefit) provision for income taxes

Our former operating entity, HPI, is taxed as an S corporation for income tax purposes. Therefore, we have not been subject to entity-level federal or state income taxation prior to the IPO. HPIH is currently taxed as a partnership for federal income tax purposes; and as a result, the members pay taxes with respect to their allocable shares of HPIH s respective net taxable income.

Following the IPO, HPIH continues to operate in the United States a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We are subject to U.S. corporate federal, state and local income taxes that are reflected in our consolidated financial statements.

For the three months ended September 30, 2013 we incurred a benefit for income taxes of \$823,000. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we incurred a provision for income taxes of \$472,000. The effective tax rate was (6.4%) for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. There was no provision for income taxes for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, during which time we operated as a limited liability company.

Our effective tax rate includes a rate detriment attributable to the fact that our subsidiaries operate as limited liability companies which are not subject to federal or state income tax. Accordingly, a portion of our earnings or losses attributable to the noncontrolling interest are not subject to corporate level taxes. Additionally, our effective tax rate includes a valuation allowance placed on all of our deferred tax assets, as our belief is more likely than not that our deferred tax assets will not be realized to offset future taxable income.

We project to have a current tax liability for the year, primarily as a result of differences between financial reporting and tax-based reporting for the timing of expense recognition. We do not project that the current tax liability will enable any portion of our deferred tax assets to be realized, and as such, the tax benefit that ordinarily accompanies a deferred tax asset is not available to offset the tax expense from our projected current tax liability. The resulting tax expense correlates with the determination of our effective tax rate.

As of December 31, 2012, we did not have any balance of gross unrecognized tax benefits, and as such, no amount would favorably affect the effective income tax rate in any future periods. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, there was no change to our total gross unrecognized tax benefit. We believe that there will not be a significant increase or decrease to the uncertain tax positions within 12 months of the reporting date.

Noncontrolling Interests

Upon completion of the IPO, HII became a holding company, the principal asset of which is its interest in HPIH. All of our business is conducted through HPIH and its subsidiaries. We are the sole managing member of HPIH and have 100% of the voting rights and control. As of September 30, 2013, we have a 38.1% economic interest in HPIH, and HPI possesses 61.9% economic interest in HPIH. HPI s interest in HPIH is reflected as a noncontrolling interest on our accompanying financial statements.

Net income attributable to HII for the three months ended September 30, 2013 included HII s share of HPIH s net income, a \$15,000 increase in the liability payable to Mr. Kosloske under the tax receivable agreement, and a benefit for income taxes of \$823,000. Net loss attributable to HII for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 included HII s share of HPIH s net loss, \$374,000 of contingent expense payable to Mr. Kosloske under the tax receivable agreement and an income tax provision of \$472,000.

On June 1, 2012, we and TSG acquired ICE. ICE is a call center training facility for our distributors. Pursuant to the terms of the transaction, we contributed \$80,000 in cash, and TSG contributed \$20,000 in cash to the newly created limited liability company. In connection with the transaction, we received an 80% controlling interest in ICE and TSG received a 20% noncontrolling interest in ICE. The intent of this transaction was to attract potential call center managers and educate them on our model and best practices with the ultimate goal of these call centers joining our distribution network. During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we contributed \$40,000, and TSG contributed \$16,000 to ICE. On June 30, 2013, we acquired TSG s interest in ICE for \$90,000, and ICE became a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

As of September 30, 2013, we had \$19.4 million of cash and cash equivalents and \$21.4 million of short-term investments. Our balance of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments increased as a result of the IPO. Historically, we have funded our operations from cash flows from operations and, to a lesser extent, working capital and borrowings, as described below.

We experienced negative cash flows from operations during the nine months ended September 30, 2013. We expect that we will generate positive cash flows from operations in future periods and on an annual basis, although this may fluctuate significantly on a quarterly basis. We believe that our available cash and cash flows expected to be generated from operations will be adequate to satisfy our current and planned operations for at least the next 12 months.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, HPIH paid \$1.6 million in distributions to entities beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske, including \$773,000 that were payable as of December 31, 2012.

On February 13, 2013, we completed the IPO by issuing 4,666,667 shares of our Class A common stock, par value \$0.001, to the public at a price of \$14.00 per share of common stock. Upon completion of the IPO, HII obtained a 35% membership interest, a 35% economic interest and 100% of the voting interest in HPIH. The aggregate gross proceeds from the IPO were \$65.3 million with aggregate net proceeds of \$60.8 million, after deducting an aggregate of \$4.5 million in underwriting discounts and commissions paid to the underwriters and other fees incurred in connection with the offering.

On March 14, 2013, we terminated certain contract rights with TSG, a managing general agent of the Company, for an aggregate cash price of \$5.5 million. The full amount plus transaction costs were expensed during the nine months ended September 30, 2013. We do not expect to incur any material future expenses associated with the transaction.

On July 17, 2013, we entered into and consummated the acquisition of Secured for a cash payment of \$10.0 million, plus contingent cash and equity consideration of approximately \$6.7 million that is tied to the performance of the acquired businesses.

Related to the acquisition of Secured, during the three months ended September 30, 2013, we recognized \$107,000 in transaction costs. There were no integration costs incurred during the three months ended September 30, 2013. Transaction costs were expensed as incurred and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Our Indebtedness

Term Loan Agreement. In September 2011, we entered into a bank loan agreement with a third-party bank with a principal amount of \$4.3 million. The purpose of this bank loan was to finance the acquisition of the remaining 50% interest in HPI as described above. Borrowings under the loan were secured by all of our assets and by a personal unlimited guarantee by Mr. Kosloske and Lori Kosloske (Mrs. Kosloske), our Chief Broker Compliance Officer and Mr. Kosloske s wife, and certain real properties owned by Mr. Kosloske and Mrs. Kosloske.

On February 13, 2013, we repaid the remaining \$3.2 million outstanding balance of the term loan, using a portion of the proceeds of the IPO, and currently, we have no outstanding indebtedness.

Cash Flows

The following summary of cash flows for the periods indicated has been derived from our financial statements included elsewhere in this report (in thousands):

	Nine Months Ended September 30			
		2013		2012
	(in thousands)			
Statement of cash flows data:				
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities	\$	(3,409)	\$	4,643
Net cash used in investing activities		(31,480)		(213)
Net cash provided by (used in) provided by financing activities		53,583		(4,066)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	\$	18,694	\$	364
Flows from Operating Activities				

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

We experienced negative cash flows from operating activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and positive cash flow from operating activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2012. The cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily attributable to the \$5.5 million contract termination expense described above, increases in advanced commissions and increased selling, general and administrative expenses, partially offset by an in increase in revenues.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our primary investing activities consisted of purchases of short-term investments and the acquisition of Secured. We have invested a portion of the net proceeds of the IPO in certain short-term investments, including certificates of deposits with maturities greater than three months and a fixed-income mutual fund that is classified as available-for-sale. Our capital expenditures primarily consist of purchases of computer equipment, furniture and fixtures and computer software. In the future, we expect that we will continue to incur capital expenditures to support our expanding operations.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, cash used in investing activities was \$31.5 million as compared to \$213,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. This change was primarily due to the acquisitions of short-term investments of \$21.4 million and cash consideration paid for the acquisition of Secured of \$9.9 million, net of cash acquired. The short-term investments are used to temporarily invest a portion of the net IPO proceeds prior to their deployment into other areas of our operations, including, but not limited to general corporate purposes, expanding our advanced commission structure, potential acquisitions that are complementary to our business or entering new markets or providing new products or services.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our financing activities included the IPO, payments of IPO-related fees, repayments of debt, capital contributions from members and distributions of earnings to our members.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, cash provided by financing activities was \$53.6 million as compared to cash used in financing activities of \$4.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. Cash provided by financing activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 consisted of \$60.8 million in net proceeds from the IPO, partially offset by payments made on debt and other obligations of \$3.3 million, payments of equity issuance costs of \$1.6 million and \$1.6 million of distributions to members of HPIH. Cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 consisted of payments on debt and other obligations in the amount of \$583,000, payments of equity issuance costs of \$862,000 and \$2.8 million in distributions made to members, which were offset by proceeds from notes payable of \$100,000 and contributions from TSG to ICE of \$50,000.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2013, we had not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements, other than the operating leases discussed in Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires our management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the applicable periods. We base our estimates, assumptions and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Different assumptions and judgments could change the estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements, which, in turn, could change the results from those reported. We evaluate our estimates, assumptions and judgments on an ongoing basis. The critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments that we believe have the most significant impact on our financial statements are described below.

As an emerging growth company as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the JOBS Act), we have elected to take advantage of certain temporary exemptions from various reporting requirements, including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements. We have also elected to delay the adoption of new and revised accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. These exemptions will apply for a period of five years following the completion of our IPO although if the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds \$700 million as of any June 30 before that time, we would cease to be an emerging growth company as of the following December 31.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenues consist primarily of commissions earned for our insurance policies and discount benefit plans issued to members, enrollment fees paid by members and administration fees paid by members as a direct result of our enrollment services. The member s payment includes a combination of premiums, fees for discount benefit plans, fees for distributors and enrollment fees, which are collectively referred to as premium equivalents. Reported revenues are net of risk premium remitted to insurance carriers and amounts earned by third-party obligors. Commissions and fees

attributable to the sale of STM plans and hospital indemnity policies represent substantially all our revenues for the periods presented. Revenues are net of an allowance for policies expected to be cancelled by members during a limited cancellation period. We establish the allowance for estimated policy cancellations through a charge to revenue. The allowance is estimated using historical data to project future experience. Such estimates and assumptions could change in the future as more information becomes known, which could impact the amounts reported. We periodically review the adequacy of the allowance and record adjustments as necessary. The net allowance for estimated policy cancellations was \$124,000 and \$77,000 as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Revenue is earned at the time of sale, which coincides with the policy effective date, and ratably over the active term of the policy. Premium equivalents are paid by the members at the time of sale. Upon payment by the member, the member immediately receives all policy-related documents, including their insurance card, in electronic format, thereby completing delivery and our responsibility with respect to the sale transaction. Commission rates for all of our products are agreed to in advance with the relevant insurance carrier and vary by carrier and policy type. Under our carrier compensation arrangements, the commission rate schedule that is in effect on the policy effective date governs the commissions over the life of the policy. In addition, we earn enrollment and administration fees on policies issued.

We report our revenues net of amounts paid to our contracted insurance carrier companies and third-party obligors as we are not the ultimate party responsible for providing the insurance coverage or discount benefits to the member. As a result, we recognize the net amount of revenues earned as the agent in these transactions.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Under the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidance, the process of evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill involves a two-step process and requires significant judgment at many points during the analysis. In the first step, we determine whether there is an indication of impairment by considering relevant qualitative factors or comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. Our annual impairment test is performed with a measurement date of October 1. If, based on the first step, we determine that there is an indication of goodwill impairment, we assess the impairment in step two in accordance with the FASB guidance.

In the second step, we determine the fair value using a combination of three valuation approaches: the cost approach, the market approach and the income approach. The cost approach uses multiples from publicly available transactional data of acquired comparable target companies. Transactions are identified that have occurred over the past three years in the subject Company s industry. The market approach uses a guideline company methodology, which is based upon a comparison of the reporting unit to similar publicly-traded companies within our industry. We derive a market value of invested capital or business enterprise value for each comparable company by multiplying the price per share of common stock of the publicly traded companies by their total common shares outstanding and adding each company, then apply those multiples to our revenue and earnings to calculate a business enterprise value. Assumptions regarding the selection of comparable companies are made based on, among other factors, capital structure, operating environment and industry. As the comparable companies were typically larger and more diversified than our business, multiples were adjusted prior to application to our revenues and earnings to reflect differences in margins, long-term growth prospects and market capitalization.

The income approach uses a discounted debt-free cash flow analysis to measure fair value by estimating the present value of future economic benefits. To perform the discounted debt-free cash flow analysis, we develop a pro forma analysis of the reporting unit to estimate future available debt-free cash flow and discounting estimated debt-free cash flow by an estimated industry weighted average cost of capital based on the same comparable companies used in the market approach. Per the FASB guidance, the weighted average cost of capital is based on inputs (e.g., capital structure, risk, etc.) from a market participant s perspective and not necessarily from the reporting unit s perspective. Future cash flow is projected based on assumptions for our economic growth, industry expansion, future operations and the discount rate, all of which require significant judgments by management.

After computing a separate business enterprise value under the above approaches, we apply a weighting to them to derive the business enterprise value of the reporting unit. The weightings are evaluated each time a goodwill impairment assessment is performed and give consideration to the relative reliability of each approach at that time. Based on these weightings, we calculated a business enterprise value for the reporting unit. We then added debt-free liabilities of the reporting unit to the calculated business enterprise value to derive an implied fair value of the reporting unit. The implied fair value is then compared to the reporting unit s carrying value. Upon completion of the analysis in step one as of October 1, 2012, we determined that the fair value of business exceeded its respective carrying value. As such, a step two analysis was not required.

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. - Form 10-Q

We measure and report financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (referred to as an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The fair value of our financial assets and liabilities is determined by using three levels of input, which are defined as follows:

- Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2: Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The categorization of a financial instrument within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

We utilize the market approach to measure the fair value of our financial assets. As subjectivity exists with respect to many of the valuation techniques, the fair value estimates we have disclosed may not equal prices that we may ultimately realize if the assets are sold or the liabilities are settled with third parties. Below is a description of our valuation methods.

Short-term investments. Our short-term investments include a marketable security, available-for-sale and certificates of deposit. The marketable security, available-for-sale is a publicly-traded fixed-income mutual fund with a quoted price in an active market. The certificates of deposit have maturities ranging from greater than three months to nine months. The short-term investments are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Contingent consideration for business acquisition. The contingent consideration related to the acquisition of Secured includes a note payable and a contingent equity liability, which are valued using external valuation specialists. The inputs include discount rates reflecting the credit risk, risk of the underlying outcome of the results required by Secured to receive payment and the nature of such payments. They underlying outcomes are subject to actual revenues and earnings relative to the target results in the agreement. These liabilities are included in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Noncompete obligation. Our noncompete obligation, an exclusivity agreement with the developer of A.R.I.E.S as described in Note 10 are primarily valued using nonbinding market prices as stated in the agreement that are corroborated by observable market data. The inputs and fair value are reviewed for reasonableness and may be further validated by comparison to publicly available information or compared to multiple independent valuation sources. The noncompete obligation is classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of others, credit card transactions receivable, accounts receivable, advanced commissions, carriers and vendors payable, commissions payable, and accounts payable and accrued expenses as of September 30, 2013 approximate fair value because of the short-term duration of these instruments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In the following summary of recent accounting pronouncements, all references to effective dates of FASB guidance relate to nonpublic entities. As noted above, we have elected to delay the adoption of new and revised accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to nonpublic companies under provisions of the JOBS Act.

In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance which states that an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, should be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. To the extent a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward is not available as of the reporting date under the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction to settle any additional income taxes that would result from the disallowance of a tax position or the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction does not require the entity to use, and the entity does not intend to use, the deferred tax asset for such purpose, the unrecognized tax benefit should be presented in the financial statements as a liability and should not be combined with deferred tax assets. The assessment of whether a deferred tax asset is available is based on the unrecognized tax benefit and deferred tax asset that exist at the reporting date and should be made presuming disallowance of the tax position at the reporting date. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. We plan to adopt this guidance during the quarter ended March 31, 2014 and are assessing the potential impact to our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2013, the FASB issued guidance on releasing cumulative translation adjustments when a reporting entity (parent) ceases to have a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. - Form 10-Q

business within a foreign entity. In addition, these amendments provide guidance on the release of cumulative translation adjustments in partial sales of equity method investments and in step acquisitions. This guidance is effective on a prospective basis for fiscal years and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013. The amendments should be applied prospectively to derecognition events occurring after the effective date. Prior periods should not be adjusted and early adoption is permitted. We plan to adopt this guidance during the quarter ended March 31, 2014 and we do not expect the adoption to have any significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued guidance that expanded disclosures for items reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The standard requires presentation of information about reclassification adjustments from accumulated other comprehensive income in a single note to or on the face of the financial statements. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2012. We adopted the guidance during the quarter ended March 31, 2013, and it did not have any effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In July 2012, the FASB issued amended guidance relating to goodwill and other intangible assets, which permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with GAAP. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of more than 50%. If, after assessing the totality of events and circumstances, an entity concludes that it is not more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired, then no further action is required. We adopted this guidance effective as of January 1, 2013. Since this guidance only changes the manner in which we assess indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment, adoption did not expected to have a material effect on our financial position or results of operations.

In December 2011, the FASB issued guidance which requires disclosures of both gross and net information about instrument and transactions eligible for offset as well as transactions subject to an agreement similar to a master netting agreement. We adopted this guidance effective as of January 1, 2013. As this guidance is limited to presentation only, adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Legal and Other Contingencies

We are a party to various legal actions incidental to our business. At this time, our management does not expect the results of any of the legal actions to be material to our financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 3 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As a smaller reporting company we are not required to provide the information required by this Item.

ITEM 4 CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company has evaluated, under the supervision of the Company s principal executive officer and the principal financial officer, the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2013. The term

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information a company is required to disclose in reports that are filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and (ii) accumulated and communicated to a company s management, including its principal executed officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.

Based on this evaluation, the Company s principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of September 30, 2013, due to a material weakness (as defined under standards established by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board) in the controls

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. - Form 10-Q

over the design and operation of the financial statement close process.

The deficiencies in the design and operation of the financial statement close process identified include:

- \cdot no formal process for reviewing period-end cutoff of revenues and expenses to ensure amounts are captured in the period earned or incurred under the accrual basis of accounting;
- the absence of process to ensure all expenses incurred during the period are accrued as of the month-end date and recorded within the proper entity, including expenses for which estimates are required;
- •the absence of a mechanism through which the accounting implications of significant, unusual or non-routine events and transactions are formally evaluated; and

•no process to ensure formally executed agreements regarding significant arrangements with third parties and others are obtained.

Since the material weakness was identified, we have taken the following steps intended to remediate this material weakness:

·hired additional personnel with technical accounting expertise;

·formalized processes for appropriate period allocations of revenues and expenses;

·implemented procedures for month-end accruals and allocations;

·formalized accounting evaluations of significant, unusual or non-routine events and transactions;

·established new mechanisms for obtaining certain executed agreements;

·implemented additional procedures and controls; and

•enhanced training for our finance and accounting personnel to familiarize them with our accounting policies. The Company believes the remediation measures it has taken and intends to take will strengthen the Company's internal control over financial reporting and will serve to remediate the identified material weakness. In any event, measures taken through September 30, 2013 had not been in operation long enough to evaluate their effectiveness over a sufficient period of time. Therefore, the identified material weakness had not been remediated as of September 30, 2013. The Company will continue to monitor the effectiveness of its remediation measures and intends to make changes and take such other actions that it deems appropriate given the circumstances.

If our remediation measures are insufficient to address the identified material weakness, or if additional material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal controls are discovered in the future, we may fail to meet our future reporting obligations, our financial statements may contain material misstatements and our operating results may be adversely affected.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except for the changes in response to the material weakness identified above, there were no changes in the Company s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2013 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company s internal control over financial reporting.

PART II OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently a party to any material litigation proceedings. From time to time, however, we may be a party to litigation and subject to claims incident to the ordinary course of business. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

The following is an update to risk factors we have previously disclosed.

Risks Relating to Our Business and Industry

Our acquisitions and other strategic transactions may be difficult to integrate, divert management resources, result in unanticipated costs or dilute our stockholders.

Part of our continuing business strategy is to acquire or invest in, companies, products or technologies that complement our current products, enhance our market coverage, technical capabilities or production capacity, or offer growth opportunities or make other strategic transactions. We consummated the acquisition of Secured on July 17, 2013. Acquisitions such as Secured and other strategic transactions could pose numerous risks to our operations, including:

·difficulty integrating the purchased operations, technologies or products;

·incurring substantial unanticipated integration costs;

• assimilating the acquired businesses may divert significant management attention and financial resources from our other operations and could disrupt our ongoing business;

·acquisitions could result in the loss of key employees, particularly those of the acquired operations;

·difficulty retaining or developing the acquired businesses customers;

·acquisitions could adversely affect our existing business relationships with suppliers and members;

·failing to realize the potential cost savings or other financial benefits and/or the strategic benefits of the acquisitions; and

• incurring liabilities from the acquired businesses for infringement of intellectual property rights or other claims, and we may not be successful in seeking indemnification for such liabilities or claims.

In connection with these acquisitions or other strategic transactions, we could incur debt, amortization expenses related to intangible assets, large and immediate write-offs, assume liabilities or issue stock that would dilute our current stockholders percentage of ownership. We may not be able to complete acquisitions or integrate the operations, products or personnel gained through any such acquisition without a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Class A Common Stock

We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting that, if not corrected, could result in material misstatements in our financial statements.

In connection with the preparation of our financial statements included in the prospectus for our IPO and in all subsequent financial statements reported for periods through the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, we identified a certain matter involving our internal control over financial reporting that constitutes a material weakness under standards established by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB). The PCAOB defines a material weakness as a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of a company s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

We identified a material weakness where we did not have effective controls over the design and operation of the financial statement close process, which process impacts most of our significant accounts included in the financial statements. The deficiencies in the design and operation of the financial statement close process that resulted in the material weakness included the following:

·lack of a formal process for reviewing period-end cutoff of revenues and expenses to ensure amounts are captured in the period earned or incurred under the accrual basis of accounting;

 \cdot no process in place to ensure all expenses incurred during the period are accrued as of the month-end date and recorded within the proper entity, including expenses for which estimates are required;

 \cdot absence of a mechanism through which the accounting implications of significant, unusual or non-routine events and transactions are formally evaluated; and

•no process to ensure formally executed agreements regarding all significant arrangements with third parties and others are obtained.

We are taking steps to address this material weakness by hiring additional personnel with technical accounting expertise and by implementing enhanced training for our finance and accounting personnel to familiarize them with our accounting policies. However, the material weakness will be ongoing until these controls are fully implemented and we will not be able to confirm that we have remediated this material weakness until our newly implemented procedures have been working for a sufficient period of time. As a result of this and similar activities, management s attention may be diverted from other business concerns, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If the remedial policies and procedures we implement and resources we hire are insufficient to address the identified material weakness, or if additional material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal controls are discovered in the future, we may fail to meet our future reporting obligations, our financial statements may contain material misstatements and our operating results may be adversely affected.

ITEM 2 UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On February 7, 2013, a registration statement (Registration No. 333-185596) relating to our initial public offering of our Class A common stock was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Under this registration statement, we registered 4,666,667 shares of our Class A common stock, and another 700,000 shares subject to the over-allotment option of the underwriters of the initial public offering. The offering closed on February 13, 2013. All 4,666,667 shares of Class A common stock registered under the registration statement and 100,000 shares covered by the over-allotment option were sold at a price to the public of \$14.00 per share.

The offering did not terminate until after the sale of all of the shares registered on the registration statement. The aggregate gross proceeds from the shares of Class A common stock sold by us were \$65.3 million. The aggregate net proceeds to us from the offering were approximately \$60.8 million, after deducting an aggregate of \$4.5 million in underwriting discounts and commissions paid to the underwriters and other expenses incurred in connection with the

offering.

As of September 30, 2013, we had used \$3.2 million of the net proceeds to pay all of our outstanding debt under our loans from a third-party bank. We used \$1.3 million of the proceeds from the sale of shares through the over-allotment option to acquire Series B Membership Interests, together with an equal number of shares of our Class B common stock, from Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC, which is controlled by Mr. Kosloske, our Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer, which Series B Membership Interests were immediately recapitalized into Series A Membership Interests. We also used \$5.5 million of the net proceeds to acquire Secured. We expect to use the remaining proceeds of the offering to fund the cash components of the contingent compensation arrangements related to Secured, to expand our advanced commission structure and for general corporate purposes, including potential acquisitions that are complementary to our business or enable us to enter new markets or provide new products or services. The remaining proceeds are currently held in short-term, highly liquid investment accounts, or certificates of deposit.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table lists our deemed share repurchases during the three months ended September 30, 2013. All shares reported were surrendered by an employee in order to satisfy statutory tax withholding obligations in connection with the vesting of stock-based compensation awards. We do not have a publicly announced share repurchase program.

				Total Number of Shares Purchased as	Maximum Number of Shares That May Yet Be
	Total Number of	Averag	ge Price	Part of Publicly	Purchased Under
Period	Shares Purchased	Paid Per Share		Announced Program	the Program
July 2013					
August 2013	28,315	\$	11.58		
September 2013	4,162		11.66		
Total	32,477	\$	11.59		

ITEM 3 DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4 MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5 OTHER INFORMATION

None.

ITEM 6 EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.	Description			
2.1	Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 17, 2013, by and among Health Plan Intermediaries Holdings, LLC, Health Insurance Innovations, Inc., Joseph Safina, Howard Knaster and Jorge Saavedra (the schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K).			
10.1	Form of Performance Based Stock Award (A) Agreement.			
10.2	Form of Performance Based Stock Award (B) Agreement.			
10.3	Adjustable Promissory Note due June 30, 2015.			
10.4	Guaranty, dated as of July 17, 2013, of Health Insurance Innovations, Inc.			
31.1*	Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).			
31.2*	Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).			
32**	Section 1350 Certifications			
100.INS#	XBRL Instance Document			
101.SCH#	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document			
101.CAL#	XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document			
101.LAB#	XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document			
101.PRE#	XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document			
101.DEF#	XBRL Taxonomy Definition Document			

Document is incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 23, 2013.

*Document is filed with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

#Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections.

^{**} Document is furnished with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.

November 14, 2013

/s/ Michael W. Kosloske MICHAEL W. KOSLOSKE CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER)

November 14, 2013

/s/ James P. Dietz JAMES P. DIETZ EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND SECRETARY

(PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER)

November 14, 2013

/s/ Joan Rodgers JOAN RODGERS CHIEF ACCOUNTING OFFICER

(PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER)